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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  Good morning.  I’m Tad Decker.  I’m the 2 

Chairman of the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board.  3 

Before entering into these proceedings today, I want 4 

to call to everyone’s attention again both the code of 5 

conduct and a meeting guideline for this licensing 6 

hearing.  If you did not already pick up a copy, both 7 

are available on the table just outside the auditorium 8 

doors.  The rules in these documents will be strictly 9 

enforced. 10 

  The Board expects that it is our 11 

responsibility to ensure that courtesy prevails among 12 

the audience, presenters and speakers.  Therefore, 13 

audience outbursts, including applause, are not 14 

permitted and we respectfully ask your assistance in 15 

complying with that essential courtesy.  Vocal 16 

expressions from the audience complicate the Board’s 17 

task.  And if we determine that this hearing is being 18 

disrupted, we will call a recess and upon the 19 

restoration of order resume the hearing.  Persons who 20 

refuse to acknowledge and respect the authority of the 21 

Board, may be asked to leave the room and the area.   22 

  We also welcome members of the media to 23 

this hearing and ask that they observe the guidelines 24 

distributed when they came in.  In general, we ask 25 
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that the media follow the same protocol that applies 1 

in a formal court proceeding.  In particular, we ask 2 

that reporters and photographers not interfere with 3 

the hearing in any way, and that they conduct 4 

interviews with speakers outside the room.  5 

  Finally, I want to remind the media that 6 

the Board will not be available for interviews during 7 

or after these hearings.  Thank you. 8 

  During the prior two days, we began the 9 

process of reviewing Category 2 applicants for 10 

licensure by holding the final hearings for the HSP 11 

Sugarhouse, Riverwalk, Philadelphia Entertainment, 12 

Foxwoods and Keystone Redevelopment TrumpStreet 13 

applications.  Today the Board is continuing that 14 

process with PNK, the Pinnacle project.  15 

  As stated previously, the Pennsylvania 16 

Race Horse Development and Gaming Act, otherwise known 17 

as Act 71, provides two Category 2 slot machine gaming 18 

licenses to be granted in the City of Philadelphia 19 

under Act 71.  The application process for today’s 20 

applicants has undergone an extensive review by staff 21 

for over ten months.  Today’s proceeding is to provide 22 

a final hearing opportunity for the applicants to 23 

convince the Board that they should be granted a 24 

license and answer any and all questions that the 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

5   5 

Board may have relating to these important issues.  1 

  As in all hearings, the factors that the 2 

Board will take into consideration when reviewing 3 

these applications are defined in the Act.  The Board 4 

intends to fully consider all factors set forth in the 5 

Act to arrive at a thorough and reasoned decision 6 

based upon all the evidence in the record before the 7 

Board.  Upon the conclusion of these five hearings, 8 

the Board will take the matter of awarding the two 9 

Category 2 licenses under advisement.   10 

  As required by the Act, a decision of the 11 

Board will not be forthcoming on this group of 12 

applicants until such time as the Board has the 13 

opportunity to deliberate and vote on all licenses as 14 

were initially applied for in Categories 1, 2 and 3 15 

collectively and together.  As previously stated in 16 

other proceedings, we plan to do so before the end of 17 

the year.   18 

  The two licenses will not actually be 19 

issued, however, until any appeals relating to the 20 

grant or deny of the licenses are resolved and the 21 

applicant agrees to all Board conditions of the 22 

license, pays required licensing fees and arranges 23 

with the Board staff for the opening of the facility. 24 

Only upon the occurrence of these events will the 25 
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selected applicant be entitled to begin operating 1 

under its slot machine license.   2 

  I will now call to order this meeting of 3 

the Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board in the matter of 4 

the Category 2 hearing for PNK PA, LLC, which is also 5 

referred to as Pinnacle.  PNK has filed an application 6 

for a Category 2 slot machine license in Philadelphia. 7 

The application process for this applicant, as I 8 

mentioned before, has gone under extensive review by 9 

our staff.  Today represents the final hearing for 10 

this applicant to present evidence demonstrating to 11 

the Board’s satisfaction that it is suitable for the 12 

license and that it should receive one of the two 13 

licenses which are available.   14 

  The procedure which we intend to follow 15 

during this hearing is the same as of the other four 16 

hearings.  Executive director, Anne Neeb and our Chief 17 

Counsel, Frank Donaghue will provide an overview of 18 

the licensing and investigatory process to date.  The 19 

applicant will make its presentation and respond to 20 

any questions or issues which the Board may raise.  21 

And then finally, we’ll hear from the Bureaus of 22 

Licensing Investigations and Enforcement and Corporate 23 

Compliance and Internal Controls concerning the review 24 

of those Bureaus of this applicant. 25 
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  Would all the representatives of PNK and 1 

of the Board who may present testimony today, please 2 

stand and be sworn in. 3 

------------------------------------------------------ 4 

WITNESSES SWORN EN MASSE 5 

------------------------------------------------------ 6 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 7 

  Thank you.  I will now ask Executive 8 

Director Anne Neeb to address the review of the 9 

application by the staff. 10 

  MS. NEEB:   11 

  Thank you, and good morning Chairman 12 

Decker and members of the Board.  Today the Board is 13 

presented for its consideration the Category 2 license 14 

application of PNK.  This application was filed with 15 

the Gaming Control Board on December 28th, 2005.  16 

Since the filing of the application, a number of 17 

significant events have occurred to permit the review 18 

of the applicant for both its eligibility and 19 

suitability for licensure under the Pennsylvania Race 20 

Horse Development and Gaming Act. 21 

  First, public input hearings were held in 22 

Philadelphia on April 10th, 11th, 12th of 2006, during 23 

which time PNK made an oral presentation concerning 24 

its project, including the submission of documentary 25 
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exhibits.  In addition, during the course of that 1 

hearing, 33 speakers presented either their support 2 

for or opposition to the proposed project.  The 3 

hearing was recorded and transcribed.   4 

  Second, the Pennsylvania Gaming Control 5 

Board placed a significant amount of materials 6 

submitted by PNK on its website for the public to have 7 

access concerning the proposal, projections and 8 

studies which had been presented to the Board.  These 9 

documents included a diversity plan, a local impact 10 

report, which included transportation and traffic 11 

studies, a utility report, a noise, light and air 12 

impact report and an economic impact report and maps.  13 

  The dissemination of this previously 14 

cited information permitted the Board’s receipt of 15 

written submissions both in support of and opposition 16 

to the project.  On June 2nd, 2006, the Board had 17 

received five submissions, including one in support of 18 

the application and four in opposition to the 19 

application.  In addition, the Bureaus of Licensing 20 

Investigation and Enforcement and Corporate Compliance 21 

have undertaken the review of the application 22 

consistent with the mandates of the Act.  The result 23 

of this licensing investigative phase of the 24 

application process is the creation of the suitability 25 
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report, which has been provided to the Board and to 1 

the applicant and summarizes the findings of the 2 

Bureaus as to the applicant’s compliance with the 3 

Act’s licensing eligibility and suitability 4 

requirements.   5 

  Further in the application PNK submitted 6 

a traffic study.  The Pennsylvania Gaming Control 7 

Board retained the firm of Edwards and Kelcey to 8 

review the study and issue a report.  Since that time, 9 

the applicant responded to the Edwards and Kelcey 10 

report, and Edwards and Kelcey reviewed the response 11 

and issued a final report to which the applicant was 12 

again permitted to respond to.  The Edwards and Kelcey 13 

reports and the applicant’s responses thereto are 14 

marked as an exhibit.  I’ll now turn it over to Chief 15 

Counsel Frank Donaghue who will discuss the evidence 16 

and the stipulations. 17 

  ATTORNEY DONAGHUE: 18 

  Finally, the parties have entered into a 19 

stipulation regarding the procedure employed by the 20 

Bureaus of Licensing Investigation and Enforcement and 21 

Corporate Compliance.  The culmination of this work, 22 

which has spanned almost one year has resulted in an 23 

evidentiary record, which includes the full 24 

application, local impact statements, traffic studies, 25 
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the transcript of the public input hearing and the 1 

written comments presented and received by the Board, 2 

the licensing suitably report and the stipulated 3 

testimony.    4 

  The parties have entered into a 5 

stipulation that each of these items, which are 6 

identified and offered as Exhibits One through Ten are 7 

to be admitted into the record as stipulated 8 

evidentiary record for the Board’s consideration.  9 

  In addition, the transcripts of these 10 

proceedings and any other evidence submitted and 11 

admitted as exhibits in connection with this 12 

applicant’s licensing hearing today would likewise be 13 

part of the record for the Board’s review and 14 

consideration.   15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  Thank you, Frank.  In light of the 17 

stipulation regarding Exhibits One through Ten being 18 

admitted to the evidentiary record in this matter, may 19 

I have a motion to accept the exhibits?   20 

  MR. MARSHALL:   21 

  So moved. 22 

  MR. RIVERS:   23 

  Second. 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 
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  Thank you.  All in favor?  The motion 1 

carries.  They’re admitted.  Anne. 2 

  MS. NEEB:   3 

  Yes.  We also have a representative here 4 

today from Edwards and Kelcey who will present the 5 

findings of their traffic studies.  I’d like to call 6 

them up at this time.  There he is.  Here you go. 7 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM:   8 

  Thank you. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  Mr. Cunningham, we’re going to swear you 11 

in again. 12 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM:   13 

  Yes, sir. 14 

------------------------------------------------------ 15 

STEPHEN CUNNINGHAM, HAVING FIRST BEEN DULY SWORN, 16 

TESTIFIED AS FOLLOWS: 17 

------------------------------------------------------ 18 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM:   19 

  Thank you.  Good morning Mr. Chairman, 20 

members of the Board.  As we’ve done with the previous 21 

applicants, I’m just going to give you a brief 22 

overview of the traffic impact findings and the ---. 23 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 24 

  I presume the applicant has no objection 25 
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to waiving his reviewing his credentials or the 1 

credentials of the firm.  Is that okay?  Thank you. 2 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM:   3 

  Thank you.  We touched on this in the 4 

previous four applicants.  But the basic process of 5 

the traffic impact study that the applicant undertook 6 

was analysis of the existing traffic volumes in and 7 

around the project site, projection of new trips 8 

anticipated with the project development, reevaluation 9 

of anticipated delays that are anticipated in 10 

conjunction again with the development and, finally, 11 

recommendation of mitigation measures to alleviate 12 

those projected delays.   13 

  Pinnacle has proposed to open a temporary 14 

casino with 1,500 slot machines in mid 2007 and a 15 

Phase I permanent casino with 3,000 slot machines in 16 

early to mid 2009.  The site is located near the 17 

intersection of Dyott Street and Delaware Avenue and 18 

Richmond Street in the City of Philadelphia.   19 

  With that development scope in mind, the 20 

applicant has identified a 15 intersection study area 21 

with weekday morning, weekday afternoon and Saturday 22 

afternoon peak hours studied for evaluation in the 23 

traffic impact study efforts.  Furthermore, they’ve 24 

identified new trips that are going to be associated 25 
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with this development, namely 583 trips during the 1 

weekday morning peak hour, 1,330 trips during the 2 

weekday afternoon peak hour and 1,865 trips during the 3 

Saturday afternoon peak hour.  Those are both entering 4 

and exiting the proposed facility on the roadway 5 

network in and around the project area. 6 

  They’ve assumed 80 percent of the patrons 7 

are going to access the site and depart via Interstate 8 

95.  As we’ve touched on with the other applicants on 9 

North Delaware Avenue, the Girard Avenue interchange 10 

project is scheduled for completion in 2012, which is 11 

going to allow for enhanced access to both Girard 12 

Avenue and Delaware Avenue in the vicinity of the 13 

proposed development.  It’s noted that upon completion 14 

of this interchange, it’s going to significantly 15 

enhance access to the Pinnacle site both to and from 16 

Interstate 95. 17 

  Mitigation measures that have been 18 

identified in the study, these are what the applicant 19 

is proposing in order to, again, alleviate those 20 

delays that are associated with the development. 21 

  Signal timing and coordination 22 

adjustments.  As we’ve seen with the other applicants 23 

we’ve discussed over the past several days, 24 

reallocation of green time at signalized intersections 25 
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is going to allow for increased traffic flows through 1 

the area. 2 

  Roadway widening at select locations, 3 

namely installation of auxiliary turning lanes and 4 

some possible re-striping at select intersections in 5 

order to increase intersection capacity.   6 

  And finally, traffic signal installations 7 

at three locations along Richmond Street, at Dyott 8 

Street, which is the interim site access and finally 9 

at Cumberland Street and at Girard Avenue.   10 

  As earlier indicated, Edwards and Kelcey 11 

reviewed the preliminary study materials that were 12 

submitted to the Board.  We issued a letter dated 13 

September 11th of this year.  The applicant 14 

subsequently revised their study materials.  And we 15 

issued a final revised letter dated November 1st of 16 

this year. 17 

  The major findings of our review efforts 18 

is that the applicant should more fully evaluate the 19 

traffic impacts between their Phase I casino opening 20 

in 2009 and completion of the Girard Avenue 21 

interchange in 2012.  There’s going to be additional 22 

traffic that’s seen in that three-year window that’s 23 

not going to be sufficiently --- excuse me, that upon 24 

completion of the Girard Avenue interchange will 25 
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significantly increase --- that three-year window 1 

between the Phase I opening and the opening of the 2 

Girard Avenue interchange has not been adequately 3 

addressed to our satisfaction.  What we’re 4 

recommending is some additional mitigation measures be 5 

identified and more fully evaluated by the applicant.  6 

  Furthermore, a ten year projected 7 

analysis should be completed showing further increased 8 

--- a ten-year projection should be performed to 9 

ensure acceptable conditions in the future years as 10 

this casino is going to be opened and operating many 11 

years into the future.  That’s the conclusion of my 12 

comments.  I’d be happy to answer any questions the 13 

Board may have. 14 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 15 

  Thank you, Mr. Cunningham.  Any 16 

questions?  So what you’re saying is the traffic --- 17 

the proposed mitigation in here during the period 18 

between Phase I and Phase II implementation needs some 19 

bolstering; is that what your view is? 20 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM:   21 

  The applicant has demonstrated that upon 22 

opening of the Girard Avenue interchange that the 23 

anticipated traffic associated with the development 24 

can be mitigated.  The concerns that our review team 25 
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has is that in the three-year period before that 1 

interchange opens, exactly how that traffic is going 2 

to be mitigated.   3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 4 

  Do you have some suggestions with respect 5 

to that? 6 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM:   7 

  There’s additional intersections that 8 

should be further evaluated in anticipation of this 9 

additional traffic.  Namely the intersections along 10 

Girard Avenue exiting Interstate 95 in order to access 11 

the project site should be more fully evaluated. 12 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 13 

  They’re identified in your report, if I’m 14 

not mistaken; correct? 15 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM:   16 

  Yes. 17 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 18 

  Any other questions for Mr. Cunningham? 19 

Thank you very much. 20 

  MR. CUNNINGHAM:   21 

  Thank you. 22 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 23 

  Anne? 24 

  MS. NEEB:   25 
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  Well, at this time, I think we would turn 1 

it over to the applicant for their presentation. 2 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 3 

  Thank you.  Please.  It’s all yours.   4 

  ATTORNEY GIORGIONE: 5 

  Good morning, Mr. Chairman.  Good morning 6 

members of the Board and staff.  My name is Andrew 7 

Giorgione.  I’m with Buchanan, Ingersoll & Rooney, and 8 

we represent the applicants, Pinnacle Entertainment, 9 

Inc. and PNK PA, LLC. 10 

  Let me briefly introduce you to the 11 

Pinnacle Company.  It is a publicly traded holding 12 

company.  Its stock is traded on the New York Stock 13 

Exchange.  It conducts business through numerous 14 

project level gaming subsidiaries in the United States 15 

and abroad.  And here in this context, that subsidiary 16 

is PNK PA.  It has multiple gaming licenses in 17 

Louisiana, Nevada, New Jersey, Indiana and 18 

Mississippi, and has been awarded multiple licenses in 19 

Missouri.   20 

  In its recent September 2006 10-Q filing 21 

with the SEC, it has reported over $980 million in net 22 

revenues for the previous 12-month period and its 23 

current market capitalization is $1.5 billion.   24 

  Pinnacle will present testimony today 25 
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from its entire management team on salient topics 1 

ranging from financing, economic development, 2 

construction, diversity and traffic.  Pinnacle will 3 

also present testimony from experts in many of these 4 

areas.  Finally, Pinnacle would present testimony from 5 

Mr. Robert Johnson, president of the RLJ Company, 6 

regarding his proposed investment in PNK PA, which we 7 

will qualify and explain in a moment.   8 

  Through this licensing process, we 9 

believe we have established, by clear and convincing 10 

evidence, our eligibility and suitability for a 11 

license.  Accordingly, in this competitive process, 12 

Pinnacle will demonstrate that it is the strongest 13 

applicant in terms of its ability to license, finance, 14 

develop and operate a gaming facility in Philadelphia. 15 

And also its ability to fulfill its commitments to 16 

diversity in the licensing community.  17 

  Further, Pinnacle will demonstrate that 18 

it has the best location with the largest landmass, 19 

minimal impacts on the community and the most friendly 20 

neighborhood design program.  Indeed Pinnacle’s gaming 21 

entertainment complex will be one of the most 22 

compelling tourism destinations in the City of 23 

Philadelphia.  24 

  With that background in mind, I want to 25 
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briefly discuss the status of Mr. Johnson’s investment 1 

in the project.  Robert Johnson is the president of 2 

RLJ Companies.  As you know, he was the founder 3 

of ---. 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 5 

  Sir, you’re aware he’s not an applicant 6 

before us?  And you can spend as much time as you want 7 

on that, and he can testify.  We don’t have any 8 

problem with that.  But just so the record’s clear, 9 

he’s not an applicant. 10 

  ATTORNEY GIORGIONE: 11 

  And that’s what I’m about to explain 12 

right now, --- 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  Okay.  Thank you. 15 

  ATTORNEY GIORGIONE: 16 

  --- just where we are on that.  He is the 17 

founder of Black Entertainment Television and he’s the 18 

current chairman of RLJ Companies, which among other 19 

things is the majority owner of the Charlotte Bobcats 20 

and RLJ Development, which controls over 130 hotels 21 

worth $3 billion. 22 

  Let me explain the background of his 23 

proposed investment.  Shortly after filing its 24 

application in the spring of 2000, Pinnacle sought a 25 
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means to comply with the diversity of ownership 1 

provision in the Pennsylvania Gaming Act.  Pinnacle 2 

was able to achieve that goal with the inclusion of 3 

Mr. Robert Johnson in this project.  To be clear, Mr. 4 

Johnson is not considered part of the PNK application 5 

at this time for purposes of suitability.  But let me 6 

explain the status of that application.   7 

  MR. MARSHALL:   8 

  Could you just clarify something for me? 9 

So Mr. Johnson was not part of your group on October 10 

13th, 2006? 11 

  ATTORNEY GIORGIONE: 12 

  That is correct, for clarity. 13 

  MR. MARSHALL:   14 

  Well, for clarity, which was the final 15 

deadline.  So we can’t go past October 13th. 16 

  ATTORNEY GIORGIONE: 17 

  I understand.  I understand.  Just a 18 

brief --- few comments.  I’ll tell you what we 19 

submitted to the Board, what’s in front of them right 20 

now and we’ll be done with the subject. 21 

  In July 2000, Pinnacle provided a term 22 

sheet that it had signed with Mr. Johnson for his 23 

investment for one third interest in PNK PA.  24 

Subsequent to that submission, we commenced 25 
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negotiations on an amended operating agreement for PNK 1 

PA.  In August 2006, he was submitted to Pinnacle’s 2 

internal review program and was approved.  On or about 3 

October 5th, we submitted his application documents to 4 

the Gaming Board including his PA supplement.  And on 5 

October 26th, we submitted him for pre-suitability.  6 

So that is currently where it’s at in terms of the 7 

staff's review.   8 

  On October 31st, the Pinnacle Board of 9 

Directors approved his investment in the project up to 10 

33 percent.  And just yesterday, the final operating 11 

agreement was signed.  We contemplate that if approved 12 

and granted a license, we will then submit Mr. Johnson 13 

and amend our application documents for him to be 14 

included in the PNK PA application.   15 

  Let me introduce the Chairman and CEO of 16 

Pinnacle Entertainment, Mr. Dan Lee.  He has a 17 

Bachelor’s degree in hotel administration and his 18 

Master’s in finance from Cornell University.  He spent 19 

12 years on Wall Street where he helped finance 20 

multiple casinos including over half the casinos in 21 

Atlantic City.  In 1992, he became CFO, treasurer and 22 

senior vice president for financing and development 23 

for Steve Wynn at the Mirage.   And in 2002, he was 24 

recruited by the Board of Directors of Pinnacle to be 25 
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its Chairman and CEO.  And therefore, we’ll begin our 1 

presentation by calling our first witness, Mr. Dan 2 

Lee. 3 

------------------------------------------------------ 4 

DANIEL LEE, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS 5 

FOLLOWS: 6 

------------------------------------------------------ 7 

  MR. LEE:   8 

  Good morning.  I prefer to stand, if it’s 9 

okay, and address a few things.  We hope to 10 

demonstrate to you today that we should be chosen for 11 

this for many reasons.  Probably first and foremost is 12 

we believe we do have the best site.  Quite honestly, 13 

it fell into our laps a little bit.  This was a site 14 

that Ameristar had worked on for quite some time.   15 

And at the last minute, Ameristar decided not to 16 

proceed.  And we received a phone call from the 17 

landowner who said, we understand you have a good 18 

reputation.  You’re licensed in numerous 19 

jurisdictions.  You have the financial capability of 20 

coming up with a $50 million bond quickly.  Would you 21 

look at this?  And we did and realized very fast that 22 

this was a large site, easily reached, well located 23 

and I think that’s probably the strongest part of our 24 

proposal. 25 
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  Second, we turned to the Jerde companies 1 

and their own experience to design something that I 2 

think is very innovative.  I think it will complement 3 

Philadelphia very nicely and add to the entire 4 

experience of living in Philadelphia and visiting 5 

Philadelphia. 6 

  Third, as a company, we have extensive 7 

development experience.  Arguably the most in the 8 

entire gaming industry let alone of the applicants 9 

that are here.  That’s not only at Pinnacle where we 10 

have a lot that we have developed and are developing, 11 

but also our people come from other companies that had 12 

development experience.  And that’s important because 13 

it’s a different skill to develop a casino, to design 14 

one, get it built and get it opened than it is just to 15 

operate one.  There’s lots of companies who operate 16 

casinos.  There really aren’t very many who develop 17 

them. 18 

  And until you’re standing on a former 19 

shipyard looking around trying to wonder what the 20 

toxic waste is and how you deal with riparian rights 21 

and all of that stuff, we’ve done that before.  In 22 

Lake Charles, Louisiana, we built in a swamp.  We 23 

literally stepped off a boat and our head of 24 

construction sank into the mud up to his knees.  And 25 
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he said, I don’t know about this site.  And I said, 1 

well, we’re two hours from Houston, I think it’d be 2 

great.  And now we have a very successful casino 3 

there. 4 

  In St. Louis, we’re building --- you want 5 

to talk about toxic waste, we are building on a site 6 

that was where National Lead used to make lead paint, 7 

that the County spent 30 years trying to find a way to 8 

get somebody to remediate the site.  We’re remediating 9 

the site.  We’re building an entrance road into it.  10 

It’s a half mile long, including a bridge across 11 

railroad tracks.  So we’ve developed casinos.  And 12 

it’s not easy, but we do know how to do it. 13 

  Third, we have a proven operating track 14 

record.  We operate quite a few casinos of all 15 

different types.  Everything from a truck stop in Reno 16 

to a four star, four diamond property outside of 17 

Cincinnati and another one outside of Houston.  And 18 

then of course we have a value added partnership with 19 

Mr. Johnson who brings a lot to the table on this with 20 

his connections in the entertainment community and 21 

with the minority community.  And so we’re happy to 22 

have that partnership and we hope this is the first of 23 

many that we can have with Mr. Johnson.  And so we 24 

think this is the right choice for Philadelphia. 25 
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  I want to briefly introduce the numerous 1 

people we have here from our team.  Of course we 2 

mentioned Mr. Johnson and Wade Hundley, who is our 3 

president right here and was formerly in the office of 4 

the CEO of Harvey’s Casinos.  And Wade’s been with us 5 

since 2001.  And then Cliff Kortman, who is president 6 

of our construction arm, PNK Design and Construction. 7 

Jack Godfrey, who is our general counsel and used to, 8 

when he didn’t have grey hair, head up the legal 9 

department of the Nevada Gaming Control.  Steve Capp, 10 

who is our chief financial officer.  And previously, 11 

before he joined us about three years ago was a 12 

managing director of Bear Stearns.  And Alain Uboldi, 13 

who is our chief operating officer, who is actually a 14 

Monegasque.  You know, there’s only a couple hundred 15 

people in the world who actually are born in Monte 16 

Carlo and carry a Monte Carlo passport.  There’s a 17 

famous casino in Monte Carlo.  And when he had hair, 18 

he worked in that casino and then came to America 25 19 

years ago.  Humberto Trueba, which I happen to speak 20 

Spanish.  Most people just call him HT.  He’s our 21 

senior VP of human resources.  Harry Moppins who is 22 

our diversity compliance officer and helps us maintain 23 

a diverse company.   24 

  And then outside of Pinnacle, but 25 
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advisors to us, we have Harry Laspee, who’s the chief 1 

engineer with Pennoni Associates, who's our 2 

transportation engineer.  Mike Hartmeier, who's the 3 

managing director of Lehman Brothers.  And usually 4 

when I walk with him, they think he’s my bodyguard.  5 

Three Rose Bowls?  Two Rose Bowls when you were at 6 

UCLA.  Okay.  And Barbara Grant from --- I always get 7 

this wrong because I do speak Spanish --- Cardenas 8 

Grant Communications.  In Spanish it would be Cardenas 9 

(changes pronunciation).  And Marc Blum, who is vice 10 

president and a principal with the --- why don’t you 11 

come up and join me here, Marc, because I’m going to 12 

get into the architecture.  And Marc is our architect. 13 

  You know, we have, as I mentioned, 14 

participated in the development of some of the world’s 15 

most successful casinos and resorts.  The one on the 16 

left is Bellagio.  I was the guy who went to Japan and 17 

bought the land from the Japanese investor who owned 18 

it, which was the old Dunes and then financed 19 

Bellagio, which is arguably the most successful hotel 20 

ever built let alone casino.  It has 3,000 rooms.  It 21 

cost $1.4 billion and earns about $450 million a year. 22 

3,000 rooms, to put that in perspective, if you set 23 

out to sleep one night in every room, it would take 24 

you ten years.   25 
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  And just to kind of bootstrap that, we 1 

built a moderately priced place next door, which is in 2 

the top in the middle.  And that’s Monte Carlo.  I 3 

didn’t know Alain back then, but it seemed like a good 4 

name.  And that’s a moderately priced complement to 5 

Bellagio.  And it was kind of important to deal with 6 

those.  Basically Bellagio was so expensive to build 7 

that you needed everybody who stayed in that hotel to 8 

gamble in your casino.  And you needed some people who 9 

were staying in other hotels to gamble in your casino. 10 

And Monte Carlo was much cheaper to build, and it 11 

actually does very, very well.  It actually probably 12 

has the highest return on investment of any hotel on 13 

the Las Vegas strip. 14 

  The hotel in the upper right is the 15 

Venetian.  I was not part of that, Kim Townsend, who 16 

is the senior vice president of marketing with our 17 

company was employee number three, I believe, with the 18 

Venetian and helped build that and develop it.  And 19 

it’s been very successful. 20 

  The bottom left is the Beau Rivage.  That 21 

was Mirage property that I was part of that team on.  22 

That’s the largest casino and hotel in the south.  23 

It’s in Biloxi, Mississippi.  There was a trick we 24 

always used at Mirage.  If you look carefully at both 25 
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Bellagio and Beau Rivage, we didn’t want them to 1 

appear so large.  Who wants to stay in the world’s 2 

largest hotel?  It probably has the slowest room 3 

service and it’s about a mile to your room.  So we 4 

didn’t want the hotel to look so big.  But you needed 5 

it to be big to get the economies of scale and make it 6 

work.  And so each of those squares that you see is 7 

actually four rooms.  When you went into the guest 8 

room of the wall ahead of you, from floor to ceiling 9 

it would be glass halfway across.  And then the mirror 10 

image rooms would be side by side.  And then the 11 

floors above and below would be side by side.  So when 12 

you’re looking at a 3,000 room hotel, it appears to 13 

only have 800 windows.  It’s the same trick Disney 14 

used on Main Street, USA.  So it brings it down to 15 

scale and makes a very large hotel look smaller. 16 

  And then at the bottom in the middle is 17 

Treasure Island.  That was the hotel that we added 18 

next to the Mirage, which was the first property.  The 19 

Mirage was opened before I joined the company.  But my 20 

first task was to turn a parking lot into Treasure 21 

Island, which we did.  And that hotel’s been very 22 

successful as well. 23 

  The bottom right is L'Auberge du Lac, 24 

which is Pinnacle property.  Most of our management 25 
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team joined the company in 2002, and that’s the first 1 

hotel that we built from the ground up within 2 

Pinnacle.  It opened a year and a half ago.  And it is 3 

the market leader in the State of Louisiana getting a 4 

very nice return in investment.  We’re in the process 5 

of expanding that now.  So it hasn’t even been open 6 

two years and we’re adding 250 guest rooms to it.  And 7 

we are also --- we were just approved to build a 8 

second casino next door to it.  We passed a local 9 

referendum in Lake Charles.  There were several gaming 10 

referendums across the country on November 7th.  The 11 

only one that passed was ours in Lake Charles.  And 12 

that was where the local community approved a second 13 

casino.  And I took that as a very strong vote of 14 

confidence that we’ve been a good employer and a good 15 

member of the community.  And it passed by a two to 16 

one vote to allow us to build the second casino in 17 

that community.   18 

  The Jerde Partnership --- I’ll speak for 19 

Marc here for a moment because he probably doesn’t 20 

want to pat himself on the back too much.  But they 21 

are probably the leading urban planner in the world in 22 

terms of designing what’s right in a new facility.  23 

The one on the upper left is Canal City.  That’s on 24 

the southern island of Japan.  And I don’t speak 25 
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Japanese so I can’t pronounce it, and I’m not going to 1 

try to pronounce the name of the town.  But it’s a $4 2 

billion Euro project which has a canal running through 3 

it and retail shops and hotels.   4 

  The upper right is the Gateway, which is 5 

a mixed use development in Salt Lake City.  They’ve 6 

been very active in Eastern Europe, which of course 7 

has a number of cities that have been neglected during 8 

the Cold War era and are now in a resurgence.  So 9 

they’ve got major projects going on in Warsaw, 10 

Budapest, Istanbul, Seoul, Korea.  And they have great 11 

offices on the beach in Santa Monica, which is where 12 

if I could be a world architect and live anywhere, 13 

that’s probably where I’d live, too. 14 

  And in the casino industry, I got to know 15 

John Jerde who is the senior partner of the 16 

partnership because he did the front façade of 17 

Bellagio and Treasure Island and also was instrumental 18 

in Steve Wynn’s new project that’s now the leading 19 

hotel in Las Vegas.  They also did the Palms Casino in 20 

Las Vegas and the Morongo casino, which is a tribal 21 

casino in California. 22 

  You know, it’s all about the river.  23 

Philadelphia started on the river like a lot of 24 

cities.  And the river was not only a source of 25 
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drinking water initially, although later as the river 1 

picked up other uses, the drinking water came from 2 

elsewhere, but it was also the form of transportation 3 

coming to and from.  And so industry was built along 4 

the river, shipyards, sugar refineries, all sorts of 5 

industry. 6 

  And then in the mid to late 1800s, 7 

railroads came along and were a more efficient way to 8 

transport goods.  And so railroad lines were built on 9 

the inland side of that industry.  So you had 10 

factories that were between the river and the 11 

railroads.  And the people generally moved further 12 

west in the case of Philadelphia and leaving the 13 

waterfront to the industry. 14 

  When you got to the 1900s, 1940s, ’50s, 15 

’60s, people changed and were starting to drive cars. 16 

You needed places to build freeways.  The easiest 17 

place to build a freeway was following the railroad 18 

right of way.  And so we have freeways that parallel 19 

the river on the inland side of where the factories 20 

were.  21 

  It’s a common problem because what’s 22 

happened is the factories became outdated and built 23 

new plants elsewhere, frequently in the suburbs as 24 

they followed where the people moved to.  The river 25 
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was no longer important to them as a source of 1 

transportation.  And so you ended up with a waterfront 2 

of abandoned factories and old shipyards.  And the 3 

city had effectively become disconnected from the 4 

waterfront, which is a shame because the waterfront is 5 

very beautiful. 6 

  And it’s not uncommon.  We’re facing 7 

exactly the same thing for exactly the same reason in 8 

St. Louis.  Toronto had the same disconnect from Lake 9 

Ontario.  Even Boston had the same disconnect for many 10 

of the same reasons from Boston Harbor.  And they just 11 

spent $30 billion burying the freeway so that they 12 

could reconnect with the waterfront again.   13 

  And so we looked at it and said, here is 14 

an opportunity to help the city reconnect with the 15 

waterfront and help redevelop the waterfront. 16 

  So it’s about connecting the community to 17 

the river.  It’s about regenerating the river’s edge 18 

and about becoming a stimulus for additional 19 

development up and down the river.  If you look at our 20 

site and our plan, we decided to bring the river into 21 

it.  But frankly, if you’re sitting in a restaurant 22 

looking out at the river at night, it’s just a black 23 

hole.  So we created this pond, which isn’t very deep 24 

actually and it’s manmade.  But it will appear to be 25 
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part of the river in here.  And we have restaurants 1 

that look at each other across the pond so we have 2 

things to look at, so you’re connected to the water.  3 

It will appear as if it’s actually a part of the 4 

water, but this will be a controlled environment, if 5 

you will, that it just happens to be along the 6 

waterfront and hopefully is the centerpiece of the 7 

trail that will eventually run up and down along the 8 

river.  9 

  The second is, there is undeveloped land 10 

both to our south and especially to our north.  And we 11 

hope to be the catalyst for that to be developed.  So 12 

we hope to regenerate the river’s edge.  We will 13 

regenerate a thousand feet of it or a couple thousand 14 

feet of it.  But there’s a lot of opportunity for that 15 

to continue to our north and to our south.  So we will 16 

help regenerate this.  17 

  And then we also want to fit into the 18 

community.  We don’t name all of our casinos the same. 19 

We’re not Harrah’s standing here, everything is 20 

Harrah’s or Isle of Capri that names everything after 21 

an island off the coast of Italy for some reason.  We 22 

design each of our casinos uniquely for the 23 

environment it’s in. 24 

  L'Auberge du Lac, for example, in Lake 25 
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Charles, has a French name because this is Cajun 1 

country and that’s where people expect things to be 2 

named French.  In French, it just means the inn on the 3 

lake.  And it happens to be on a lake.    4 

  In St. Louis, we have two projects in St. 5 

Louis.  The one in the County is called River City.  6 

St. Louis is at the juncture of two great rivers 7 

coming together.  It’s almost like River City from 8 

Music Man.  Of course that was Gary, Indiana.  And we 9 

designed one in St. Louis that has a lot of 10 

architecture from the St. Louis World’s Fair of 1905. 11 

  And so you look for the construction 12 

materials that make sense in the environment that 13 

they’re in.  But at the same time, this is a new 14 

environment and we want to bring people to something 15 

new.  We didn’t want to build a casino that looked 16 

like the traditional townhomes of Philadelphia that 17 

wouldn’t necessarily be something additive to the 18 

community.  But we might use bricks that look like 19 

they came from the townhomes.  And so we match into 20 

the community without simply trying to mirror it.   21 

  Now, let me turn on this model a little 22 

bit and address this.  As I said earlier, the site is 23 

really one of the big strengths because it is 33 24 

acres, which is quite a bit.  We’re building a large 25 
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casino in downtown St. Louis that’s only on eight 1 

acres, and frankly that’s a challenge.  With 33 acres, 2 

it allows you to stretch out and do some stuff that is 3 

pleasing to people without being too constrained.  4 

  An easy example is the parking garage 5 

here, which is only, I think, four floors tall.  I 6 

parked in the Walnut Street garage over here.  I don’t 7 

know what floor I’m on.  I went up and up and up and 8 

I’m on eight or nine or something.  And hopefully I 9 

could find my car.  It’s not pleasant.  If you have 10 

enough room to keep the parking garage at a lower 11 

level --- and then we have a speed ramp at the back.  12 

In other words, you go in, you go straight up level, 13 

straight up level, straight up level.  If you want to 14 

get to the fourth floor, it takes you about 30 seconds 15 

and you’re on the fourth floor.  16 

  And so the size of the space gave us a 17 

lot of flexibility in designing this.  The visual 18 

centerpiece is this pond, which in the summer would 19 

have fountains in it.  And we have a grandstand back 20 

here which allows us to put a musical act back there 21 

or almost anything.  And we've talked about trying to 22 

do a sound and light show about the history of 23 

Philadelphia.  Maybe other nights it’s just a concert 24 

of some sort.  And the entire shoreline of the pond is 25 
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looking at it.  And it has steps and tiers so that you 1 

can see it.  This is a restaurant that appears to be 2 

floating.  It’s not actually floating because it’s 3 

cheaper to build it on solid land.  But it appears to 4 

be floating in looking back at it.  So that becomes 5 

the centerpiece. 6 

  And I think one of the --- and maybe I 7 

should step back a little bit and explain a philosophy 8 

here.  People often need an excuse to go gambling.  9 

People don’t turn to their spouse and say, I’m going 10 

out to Las Vegas, I’m going to blow $500 at a crap 11 

table.  They say, I’m going to Las Vegas for a 12 

convention.  You know, this week is the G2E, you know, 13 

every gaming executive in our company is out in Las 14 

Vegas who’s not here.  And they say they’re out there 15 

to look at the newest slot machines.  We know better. 16 

They’re out there to gamble.  Or they say, we’re going 17 

out to play golf.  I’m going out with the boys to play 18 

golf.  And so there’s some other thing.  We’re going 19 

out to renew our wedding vows. 20 

  Back east people go to Atlantic City to 21 

go to the beach.  They go to Atlantic City to go to 22 

the boardwalk.  Now, will they drop some money in the 23 

slot machines?  Absolutely.  It’s part of the deal.   24 

  One of my favorite stories is my dry 25 
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cleaner in Las Vegas --- I happen to live in Las 1 

Vegas.  And my office for many years was in Bellagio. 2 

And the dry cleaner knew I worked for Mirage and my 3 

office was in Bellagio.  And he said, yeah, we love 4 

Bellagio, we go there every Thursday.  And I said, 5 

really?  He says, well, we don’t gamble much, but we 6 

go down and we have dinner.  And then my wife and I 7 

will go to the casino.  But we quit when we’ve lost 8 

$100, and then we go home.  And I said, really?  How 9 

often do you do this?  Every Thursday.  And I thought 10 

about that.  He and wife lose $5,000 a year but they 11 

don’t consider themselves gamblers.  This is what they 12 

do on Thursday night, they go out to dinner and then 13 

they lose $100.  And that explained why my dry 14 

cleaning bills were so expensive.  But he didn’t view 15 

himself as a gambler.  He viewed himself as somebody 16 

who goes out to dinner and then stops by the slot 17 

machine.  And that’s common. 18 

  So when you look at this stuff, at the 19 

end of the day the cash register is here.  This is the 20 

casino.  But we have other amenities.  Now, you don’t 21 

have to gamble to go out and watch a show out here.  22 

But obviously, that’s how we pay for the show.  And 23 

enough people will do it.  Then it makes sense.  So 24 

the casino is --- if you look at the 33 acres, the 25 
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casino is in the center.  But the visual center is not 1 

the casino. 2 

  The visual center is this mixing bowl 3 

right here, which is a lobby.  You’re drawn in by this 4 

tower, which is designed to be seen from the two 5 

bridges that were in between so that you can know that 6 

we’re here.  And then you come in.  And if you’re 7 

valet parking, you drop your car here and you come 8 

into this mixing bowl.   9 

  Now, if you’re here to go to the movies, 10 

you turn left and you walk down a street of shops that 11 

has some restaurants on this side, but it’s mostly 12 

retail until you get back here.  And that’s the 13 

entrance to the movie theaters.  And you come back 14 

into here. 15 

  Now, movie theaters tend to get a lot of 16 

teenagers.  They can’t drive.  So I don’t know if any 17 

of you have a 14 or 15 year old, but they want a ride 18 

to the movies.  Then you have to go back in an hour 19 

and a half and pick them up.  They don’t want you to 20 

sit in the movie with them.  Fine drop them off.  21 

We’ve got 2,000 slot machines for you to come over and 22 

visit.  23 

  And that’s part of it.  We’re not 24 

marketing the casino to children.  We have security 25 
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guards here that block anybody who’s not 21 from 1 

getting in, as the Gaming Commission would require.  2 

And we’re familiar with that in many different states. 3 

You can go to the movie theaters.  You can go to the 4 

shops.  You can go to the restaurants without going 5 

through the casino.  We don’t force you into the 6 

casino.  But many people find their way in on their 7 

own.  And as Thomas Jefferson said, gaming is taxation 8 

of the willing.  And so people help us pay for this 9 

willingly. 10 

  Let’s see.  That kind of outlines here.  11 

So that’s the casino.  This is the parking garage.  If 12 

you self park, you can come out here and walk around 13 

to the movie theaters.  This area in here would be the 14 

later expansion.  So what is lit right now would be 15 

Phase I.  Phase II would be when we go to 5,000 slot 16 

machines.  We just pop out the front of the casino 17 

into the surface parking lot out here and we add to 18 

the garage on the front, which gives us the additional 19 

parking needed for that.   20 

  Now, the thought is, once you have this 21 

center of community going with restaurants that are 22 

open 24 hours a day, with security that’s in place all 23 

the time, then it becomes a great place to live or 24 

even a place for a hotel.  And we said, okay, we 25 
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think, if we’re successful at building this in this 1 

location, there’d be an opportunity to come back 2 

later.  So we have left two prominent spots here to 3 

add either condominiums or hotels as it demands. 4 

  But importantly the first phase is all 5 

you need.  The principal things are here to make this 6 

work.  The pond with the restaurants on it, the 7 

retail, the movie theaters, and of course the casino 8 

and a good size parking garage.  And so Phase I, which 9 

is what we’re really here to discuss today is 10 

sufficient.  And Phase II and III are ways to expand 11 

from there, which is something we have done in other 12 

markets.  As I mentioned to you, we’ve only been open 13 

in Lake Charles 18 months.  We’re already expanding 14 

that and getting ready to build a second one next 15 

door.   16 

  On that, I’m going to turn it over to 17 

Marc who’s going to kind of take you through this from 18 

an architect’s viewpoint.   19 

------------------------------------------------------ 20 

MARC BLUM, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED AS 21 

FOLLOWS: 22 

------------------------------------------------------ 23 

  MR. BLUM:   24 

  Thank you very much.  Good morning.  As 25 
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he stated my name is Marc Blum.  I’m the vice 1 

president with the Jerde Partnership.  And I’m working 2 

in close collaboration with John Jerde and a larger 3 

team of designers in the office in Los Angeles.   4 

  The Jerde Partnership designs communal 5 

and public spaces and great mixed use development 6 

since 30 years all over the world.  I’m with Jerde 7 

since ten years and do this since a long time.  And 8 

for us, the key to design is very different than most 9 

architects’ approach.  It’s not creating just a 10 

beautiful object.  But we start a design from a very 11 

different premise. 12 

  Before we draw the first line, we think 13 

about how the public space should function, how people 14 

should walk through the site, what they should feel 15 

about the site, what they should memorize about the 16 

site, what kind of memories they should take back with 17 

them.  We create our storyboards about how you move 18 

through the site, what you think about the site.  And 19 

after we understand what people want to do on the site 20 

and how they want to use the communal space, how they 21 

want to interact with each other on the site, then we 22 

start thinking about how it should look like, how high 23 

the building should be.  So it all comes out of an 24 

understanding what you should be doing when you’re 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

42   42 

there or what you want to be doing.  And what 1 

specifically a community wants to be doing on the 2 

site.   3 

  So all over the world, by this somewhat 4 

unusual approach, all approach we designed all of the 5 

world since 30 years are economically very successful, 6 

and socially also very successful as well.  This our 7 

--- the approach and how we go about things.  It’s 8 

just a very specific way of thinking about people 9 

movement, people interaction, et cetera. 10 

  So that’s also --- the design that we 11 

proposed for the Pinnacle casino here in Philadelphia 12 

started with understanding the public space.  So as 13 

Dan mentioned, connecting the people to the river was 14 

a prime objective.  And regenerate the river to be a 15 

catalyst for future development was very important to 16 

us.  And then creating a place for the community that 17 

they have access to the river at any time in a very 18 

convenient way was crucial to us, too.  And obviously, 19 

that you can access the waterfront.  You can walk 20 

around in the beautiful park.  You can walk through 21 

the center of it.  And you can always pass by the 22 

casino in a very beautiful way.  23 

  The architecture of the building --- when 24 

we walked first on the site, it was snowing.  Snow to 25 
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my knees.  It was a really beautiful day.  The views 1 

from the site were spectacular to Betsy Ross Bridge 2 

and to the City and to Benjamin Franklin Bridge.  The 3 

strength of the industrial buildings around the site 4 

is very strong as we have the power plant adjacent to 5 

it, all the bridges, big industrial buildings along 6 

the water edge.  And that is a very strong inspiration 7 

for the design.  So we try to use everything we find 8 

on the site within Fishtown in terms of materials, 9 

size, scale and apply it to our development and use it 10 

as an inspiration but then bring it forward into more 11 

modern and inspiring a more interesting way. 12 

  So the buildings along the water --- 13 

we’ll start with the slide of the community site here. 14 

That already talks about the arrival sequence.  We 15 

want to create a very strong iconic landmark for the 16 

city.  It should be a building that you recognize, 17 

that you memorize.  When you go back from the place, 18 

it should be in your mind that there is a very strong 19 

landmark that’s another strong landmark within the 20 

City.  So something that’s memorable and strong and 21 

powerful like the buildings around the site.  22 

  So see here, the entry sequence.  We come 23 

from the I-95.  What you see is an icon tower 24 

signalizing where we are and being a clear orientation 25 
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device for the site.  Then you see the strong entry 1 

piece.  That’s how it reminds you on the strength of 2 

industrial architecture.  And a lot of brick.  As we 3 

would like to have different colors of brick and terra 4 

cottas and natural materials as we find it in Fishtown 5 

and around the site and apply those in very modern and 6 

interesting ways.   7 

  In front of the building, as you see here 8 

coming from the I-95 from the last slide, is that 9 

large park.  The entry sequence into it is not just 10 

parking and big buildings, but it’s a beautiful park 11 

that leads you into the drop off of the building. 12 

  If you go to next slide, you see how we 13 

continue this language.  You see there’s a lot of 14 

brick buildings.  It should be high level detailing 15 

and high volume materials.  Each building along the 16 

water edge should be expressed as an individual, 17 

strong architectural building.  It’s not just --- even 18 

it’s built as one big element.  But we want to express 19 

each building as if it would be built single-handedly 20 

as a really strong piece of architecture with 21 

beautiful modern detailing.  And it has the right 22 

scale.  People will feel very comfortable in it.   23 

  All our buildings combine also that we 24 

try to create something that’s cutting edge and modern 25 
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and forward thinking with lots of surprises and new 1 

interesting things to see each time you come, but at 2 

the same time are familiar to people.  And you should 3 

feel comfortable.  You should feel that it belongs to 4 

your community.  You should recognize pieces that you 5 

find in your community back into the place.  So that 6 

combination there to find that balance we need a 7 

familiar --- and something really new and cutting 8 

edge.  It’s important to us. 9 

  Do you see also how the building changes 10 

from day to night?  In the morning, you might just 11 

have a cup of coffee in the sun along the water edge 12 

or walk your dog or just enjoy the space.  You come 13 

with your business clients for lunch, or just enjoy 14 

the day with your kids along the waterfront.  And then 15 

in the evening, the atmosphere changes again to 16 

something different, which is a real, true 17 

entertainment place with great restaurants along the 18 

water edge and great night club performances.  And 19 

like Dan mentioned, that you always see somebody else 20 

on the other side of the waterfront.  It’s really 21 

important to us.  22 

  Here again, you see in just a movie 23 

animation, you see how it changes from day to night.  24 

The atmosphere and feeling of the place will change 25 
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entirely.  You see these individual buildings along 1 

the water edge.  Each one a beautiful building by 2 

itself, beautifully detailed.  You see here on the 3 

left side, the floating restaurant, which kind of 4 

looks back into the space, which is very, very 5 

interesting.  On the right side, the performance 6 

space, you have these beautiful lit trees all around 7 

the water edge. 8 

  So the combination of landscape, graphic 9 

design, architecture, urban planning, lighting is 10 

crucial to our practice.  It’s not that we are just 11 

architects, but we combine all these skills within the 12 

office.  If you don’t have it in the office, you bring 13 

it from the outside.  It’s not just about creating a 14 

building, it’s creating a beautiful environment where 15 

people will feel comfortable and excited about it.  16 

  You see the proposed water feature and 17 

the Phase III hotel tower in the back sitting along 18 

the waterfront.  So the water edge would really feel 19 

like an extension of the river.  But even it’s not an 20 

official body of water, but it will feel like it 21 

floats through the space.  22 

  Another inspiration that was important 23 

for us was the idea if there was a shipyard on the 24 

site.  So if you look at the cinema building here, the 25 
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inspiration for that, for the curve shapes, was the 1 

proper use of the site.  And here again the outdoor 2 

situation.  There’s an ice skating rink so again it 3 

can be used 365 days a year if we build inside spaces 4 

to create outside spaces.  And everybody --- 5 

everything talks about the site.  Thank you very much.  6 

  MR. LEE:   7 

  I thought I’d just mention two things 8 

while Marc was talking that I should expand on.  One 9 

is the --- I mentioned this is a controlled body of 10 

water, and it’s not very deep.  Well, in the winter 11 

you drain it.  And under a section of it, there would 12 

be cooling pipes as there is in Wollman Rink in 13 

Central Park in New York.  And, in fact, when we were 14 

designing this, I happened to be staying at a hotel 15 

that looked out at it.  It happened to be in the 16 

winter.  And I saw hundreds of people out there just 17 

skating around playing.  I don’t think they actually 18 

have a full hockey rink there, but the kids are 19 

practicing on it.  You can skate around.  It’s a 20 

pretty good sized skating rink.  And the weather in 21 

New York is not a whole lot different than the weather 22 

in Philadelphia.  I grew up in Syracuse, New York.  23 

You don’t need the cooling tubes to have a skating 24 

rink in Syracuse, New York.  But that’s when I called 25 
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Marc and said, you know, in Philadelphia could you 1 

have ice for an extended period in the winter if you 2 

do it the same way they do it in Central Park in New 3 

York?  And the answer was yes.  And so that allowed us 4 

to find a year round use for it. 5 

  Second, you’ll notice we haven’t shown 6 

you renderings of the inside of the casino and what 7 

that would be like.  Because frankly, the inside of 8 

most casinos is pretty much the same.  Slot machine 9 

manufacturers produce a Wheel of Fortune slot machine. 10 

And we go and buy that slot machine, and everybody’s 11 

got the same slot machine.  And obviously you have 12 

nice carpet and nice ceiling.  And that’s kind of all 13 

she wrote.  And at the end of the day, the gaming 14 

experience is a commodity.  Every casino in Atlantic 15 

City is exactly the same slot machines, exactly the 16 

same table games.  What’s different is what you 17 

surround it with. 18 

  You know, a really --- we average 19 

probably the highest win per slot machine per day of 20 

just about any casino company, around $250 per 21 

machine, per day.  It would be wonderful if I could 22 

put one in my garage and have it bring in $250 per 23 

machine per day.  It doesn’t work that way.  You have 24 

to surround it with a half a billion dollars of stuff 25 
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to make it work. 1 

  We have one other important aspect of 2 

this and that is, there is an existing building at 3 

this location.  It’s a 55,000 square foot building 4 

that was a fruit and cheese warehouse at one time.  5 

It’s actually a very well-built building because of a 6 

big refrigeration need of having a refrigerated 7 

warehouse.  And it exists.  It’s large, 55,000 square 8 

feet.  It’s got a lot of free space.  In other words, 9 

it’s got high ceilings and it’s a long ways between 10 

columns. 11 

  And so one of the strong things we saw 12 

about this site is it’s quite easy for us to convert 13 

that into a temporary casino.  You would do it very 14 

quickly.  You would do it with --- inexpensively 15 

really because you want to move fast and kind of 16 

decorate it, get the machines in and get open, both 17 

for us and for the state.  And that was one of the 18 

requirements of the applicants, to allow for a 19 

temporary casino.  We can do it quickly.  And, in 20 

fact, as a company, that’s very easy for us.  We have 21 

easily 2,000 slot machines sitting in warehouses.  We 22 

have a staff of people who can come here and help get 23 

this going.  And our site is big enough that we can 24 

have ample parking for the temporary casino.  And 25 
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that’s why we said we could be open by late next year 1 

in the temporary casino.   2 

  And then because of where it’s located, 3 

it should not impede the construction of the permanent 4 

facility, which would, in effect, be at the back of 5 

the parking lot for the temporary casino.  And so it’s 6 

set up pretty well. 7 

  And on that --- I think the next slide is 8 

to emphasize, again, that we’re not just an operator 9 

but also a developer, that we do build quality 10 

facilities with staying power.  We have had a high 11 

degree of success in regional markets.  And on the 12 

last issue, that we are committed to local labor.  13 

And, in fact, I expect in Philadelphia we will have a 14 

similar thing that we have in St. Louis where you have 15 

to draw the line between having a strong minority 16 

involvement in the construction, which we do have in 17 

St. Louis, about 30 percent, and, of course, a union 18 

environment.  It’s a fully union job.  And those 19 

aren't always in sync with each other.  A lot of the 20 

minority subcontractors tend to be non-union.  And we 21 

end up finding ways to try to find a way to get the 22 

minority subcontractors to employ union labor and the 23 

union to understand that they have to work with the 24 

minorities.  And we’ve been able to do that 25 
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successfully in St. Louis.  And we would expect to do 1 

the same here.  Let me turn this over to Cliff 2 

Kortman, who is our president of our development and 3 

construction subsidiary.   4 

------------------------------------------------------ 5 

CLIFF KORTMAN, HAVING BEEN PREVIOUSLY SWORN, TESTIFIED 6 

AS FOLLOWS: 7 

------------------------------------------------------ 8 

  MR. KORTMAN:   9 

  Thanks, Dan.  Thank you for having us 10 

here today.  And we’re really excited about the 11 

project.  I guess you’re looking at us and you’re 12 

thinking, how are they going to do this?  It’s an 13 

important question to ask because it’s a lot of things 14 

and a lot of dynamic and a lot of project.  So the 15 

first thing I would like to do is sort of tell you how 16 

we approach the project and how we’ve approached 17 

projects of this nature in other jurisdictions.  And 18 

it’s really about partnering.  It’s really about 19 

relationship. 20 

  And you've heard other people talk about 21 

that, but I think we've demonstrated successfully in 22 

the past and on current projects that we are all about 23 

partnering for the success of not only our project but 24 

for the city and for the community.  Before we put a 25 
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shovel in the ground, we get involved in community.  1 

We get involved with the city.  We get involved in the 2 

planning process of how we're going to establish the 3 

guidelines of how we're going to move forward.  You'll 4 

see later in presentations some testimonies from 5 

individuals that recognize the importance of 6 

partnering.  And in particular, you'll see a 7 

testimonial from the Mayor of St. Louis and the county 8 

executive, the senior county executive, the Honorable 9 

Charlie Dooley.  And we'll talk a little bit later 10 

about that.   11 

  We need to understand the regional way of 12 

doing business in Philadelphia.  You can't come into a 13 

regional market and pretend like you know how to do 14 

things.  You have to go in.  You have to do the 15 

research.  You have to understand the labor.  You have 16 

to understand the needs of the regulators.  You have 17 

to understand the needs of community.  And we're very 18 

--- we're proud of ourselves in being able to do that. 19 

It's the first step toward our success.  We want to 20 

come in and partner with the city on planning, 21 

permitting, process, site evaluation, storm water, 22 

utilities.  Whatever it is, we will come to you with a 23 

plan before we ever turn a shovel and tell you how 24 

we're going to approach the project.   25 
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  First, we'd like to talk a little bit 1 

about the temporary facility.  As Dan mentioned to 2 

you, the temporary facility exists today.  It's a 3 

great building.  If you've been to our site, you can 4 

see that it's right on --- right off of the freeway.  5 

It's in an existing warehouse that we're going to 6 

leave just as is on the exterior.  We might make some 7 

slight modifications on the exterior, but we're very 8 

excited about being able to blend the elements of 9 

Philadelphia into sort of a contemporary style on the 10 

inside.  We've indicated a 12-month duration on 11 

opening the temporary facility.  We think it's in 12 

everybody's best interest to accelerate that timeline, 13 

if possible.  We will work with you, with your 14 

enforcement group and any other agency to accelerate 15 

this to get the temporary facility open as soon as 16 

possible. 17 

  I think during the traffic study a 18 

comment was made about 1,500 slot machines in the 19 

temporary facility.  The facility is big enough to 20 

handle up to 2,000 slot machines.  Obviously, we will 21 

design for maximum capacity, but we certainly will --- 22 

we understand what our guidelines are, and we just 23 

want to make sure that it's understood that the 24 

facility could easily handle 2,000 slot machines.  25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

54   54 

Along with the slot area, we're going to have two 1 

great restaurants, a couple of bars.  And I think 2 

you'll find that the temporary facility is going to be 3 

an exciting, dynamic first step in our development. 4 

  The second part of our project is the 5 

Phase I development.  The Phase I development is 6 

really sort of a fun project because we can move 7 

forward with the Phase I development, have no impact 8 

to the temporary facility, or the temporary facility 9 

will have no impact to the Phase I construction.  We 10 

believe it's very important to understand what the 11 

critical nature of the Phase I development is.  And 12 

believe it or not, we believe it's a parking garage.  13 

We want to move quickly to get the parking garage 14 

underway.  We want to have the parking garage 15 

available for the temporary casino patrons, although 16 

we will have the surface parking available to them.  17 

But once we complete the parking garage, we need to 18 

move ahead with the site improvements.  As you know, 19 

there's significant site improvements that need to be 20 

taken care of.  We'll work with the city to take care 21 

of all the storm water, utility needs of the site.  As 22 

we finish the parking garage, we'll be able to house 23 

the construction workers in that parking garage and 24 

move forward with the low-rise construction. 25 
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  Phase II, upon completion of the Phase I 1 

project, we have the ability to expand the  2 

land-based facility to handle up to another 3,000 slot 3 

machines.  If, in fact, there was an opportunity or if 4 

table games were allowed in Philadelphia, we could 5 

certainly adjust that expansion area to handle the 6 

table game capacity also. 7 

  Along with the expansion of that low-rise 8 

building, we would add to the parking garage.  Again, 9 

I'd like to reiterate the fact that each one of these 10 

phase developments have no impact on the previous 11 

phase.  The casino patron, the casino customer, the 12 

retail customer, the moviegoer, they will not be 13 

impacted by the future phases.  We think that's 14 

probably one of the most important highlights of our 15 

project.  16 

  Phase III, as Dan mentioned to you 17 

before, if the demand is there, we are ready, willing 18 

and able to do hospitality capacity.  We think the 19 

river is great.  We think it lends itself to condo 20 

units, timeshares of some nature or, in fact, we think 21 

the most important piece of that is a hotel component. 22 

PRERECORDED TESTIMONY OF CHARLIE DOOLEY 23 

  MR. DOOLEY: 24 

  Well, what I liked about Pinnacle, I 25 
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enjoy, quite frankly, is the connectiveness, how we 1 

work with them.  For example, we have a call once a 2 

week with Pinnacle to make sure we're on track and 3 

focus on what needs to be done and when it needs to be 4 

done.  And this is an ongoing effort with St. Louis 5 

County, the community and the Pinnacle Entertainment 6 

Corporation. 7 

  MR. KORTMAN: 8 

  Sorry that got a little out of order.  9 

That was Charlie Dooley.  That's the senior executor 10 

of the county.  Again, I apologize for getting out of 11 

order. 12 

  I think what we'd like to do at this time 13 

is I'd like to introduce our traffic consultant.  14 

Harry Laspee is a graduate of Temple University.  He's 15 

a Registered Professional Engineer in Pennsylvania.  16 

He's the chief engineer of our project.  And with 17 

that, I'd like to introduce Harry.   18 

  MR. LEE: 19 

  While Harry is getting up here, I think 20 

Cliff misspoke, and a couple things I'd like to 21 

clarify.  One is, he said we're going to leave the 22 

exterior of the temporary building as is.  That's not 23 

really true.  It's an old warehouse, where the bricks 24 

are quite dirty and so on.  It's not a very  25 
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attractive-looking building.  We don't intend to spend 1 

a lot of money on it because we don't think it's going 2 

to be in use very long, but we can put large panels up 3 

there.  And Jerde's actually been designing how to do 4 

that and put lighting on it so it will look quite 5 

different than it looks today.  But there isn't 6 

anything structurally wrong with the building, which I 7 

think is what Cliff meant.  But obviously we have to 8 

add a porte-cochere and do some other things. 9 

  Second, he used the term house 10 

construction work.  I know what he meant.  It's a 11 

construction term.  He means there are cars --- nobody 12 

is actually going to be living in the parking garage 13 

while we're building this.  Basically you build the 14 

parking garage so the construction workers have a 15 

place to park their cars.  And it also gets used for 16 

the temporary casino.  That frees up the rest of the 17 

surface lots to go build Phase I because the parking 18 

for the temporary casino would have shifted into the 19 

garage. 20 

  And the last thing, just to clarify, St. 21 

Louis is one of the cities where the county and the 22 

city are two different political jurisdictions.  The 23 

St. Louis City is its own --- legally, it's the same 24 

as a county.  And St. Louis County is the county that 25 
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kind of wraps around it.  Charlie Dooley is the county 1 

executive for the county.  And later you'll see some 2 

comments by the mayor.  We were chosen in both the 3 

city and the county pursuant to two separate requests 4 

for proposals, both of which we had competitors for, 5 

and we were chosen in both cases.  Harry, I'm sorry to 6 

steal your time.  Go ahead. 7 

  MR. LASPEE: 8 

  Thank you, Dan.  Good morning.  The 9 

Pinnacle site is located on the Delaware River 10 

waterfront, immediately adjacent to I-95, at the 11 

Girard Avenue interchange.  The site is a short 12 

distance north of Center City, Philadelphia, between 13 

the Benjamin Franklin and the Betsy Ross Bridges.  14 

Pinnacle has retained Pennoni Associates to perform a 15 

traffic study for the site, and we are continuing to 16 

work and refine that study based on comments received 17 

from Edwards and Kelcey. 18 

  I'd like to take a few minutes to 19 

summarize our study findings.  First of all, our study 20 

area consisted of 15 key intersections in the vicinity 21 

of the site.  Since the Pennsylvania Department of 22 

Transportation has a major project plan to improve the 23 

I-95 corridor north of Center City, Philadelphia, 24 

which includes the redesign of the Girard Avenue 25 
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interchange that is immediately adjacent to the 1 

Pinnacle site, our study analyzed traffic conditions 2 

utilizing the existing roadway network, as well as the 3 

roadway configuration once the new interchange is 4 

constructed.  PennDOT's proposed improvements to the 5 

Girard Avenue interchange will significantly alter and 6 

improve access to the Pinnacle project.  Based on our 7 

discussions with PennDOT, the Girard Avenue 8 

interchange project is already in final design, and 9 

completion of construction is scheduled for 2012.   10 

  Based on our study, 80 percent of the 11 

site traffic is projected to utilize I-95 to access 12 

the site.  The remaining 20 percent will primarily 13 

utilize Delaware Avenue, Aramingo Avenue, Richmond 14 

Street and Girard Avenue, which are all arterial state 15 

highways.  This slide that's in front of you now shows 16 

the access to the Pinnacle site using the existing 17 

roadway network.  The site will have direct access to 18 

and from northbound I-95 under the existing 19 

conditions.  Access to and from southbound I-95 is a 20 

little less direct and will primarily utilize 21 

additional arterial state highways for short distances 22 

to access the site.  Prior to the completion of the 23 

new Girard Avenue interchange project, traffic impacts 24 

can easily be mitigated within the existing public 25 
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right of way.  I might add that in response to Edwards 1 

and Kelcey's comment, we are taking a closer look at 2 

the traffic conditions between the years 2009 and 3 

2012, and we do not anticipate any significant traffic 4 

issues, although some minor additional mitigation 5 

measures will be required. 6 

  This slide shows the conditions proposed 7 

at the completion of the I-95 Girard Avenue 8 

interchange project.  Upon completion of the 9 

Pennsylvania Department of Transportation's Girard 10 

Avenue interchange project, which is scheduled for 11 

completion in 2012, direct access to I-95 will be 12 

available via new on/off ramps to both northbound and 13 

south I-95 that will be constructed immediately 14 

adjacent to the Pinnacle site.  In fact, our new main 15 

access driveway will be aligned with the southbound 16 

ramps to I-95.  So upon completion of the Girard 17 

Avenue interchange project, approximately 80 percent 18 

of the site traffic will not need to utilize the local 19 

roadway network at all. 20 

  In addition to excellent vehicular 21 

access, the site is also well served by public 22 

transit.  This slide shows the public transit 23 

facilities in the vicinity of the site.  The green 24 

lines shown on the slide represent existing bus routes 25 
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in the vicinity of the site.  The orange line 1 

represents the existing Route 15 trolley line.  And 2 

the blue line to the left represents the 3 

Market/Frankfurt elevated line, which is approximately 4 

one-half mile from the site.   5 

  In summary, there are three key traffic 6 

points.  Number one, 80 percent of the site traffic is 7 

projected to utilize I-95 to access the Pinnacle site. 8 

Upon completion of the Pennsylvania Department of 9 

Transportation's Girard Avenue interchange project in 10 

2012, direct access to I-95 will be available 11 

virtually at the front door of the casino.   12 

  Number three, in the interim, prior to 13 

the completion of the new Gerard Avenue interchange 14 

project, traffic impacts can easily be mitigated 15 

within the existing public right of way.   16 

  MR. LEE: 17 

  And I notice also the concern about 2009 18 

to 2012.  Just two observations on that.  One is, 19 

while the temporary casino would only be open about 20 

two years, which is why we want to do it without 21 

investing a lot of capital, when you invest the $300 22 

million to $400 million in the permanent facility, 23 

you're not doing that for two years.  You're doing 24 

that for 30 years.  You won't get your money back in 25 
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two years.  And so when you look at the traffic issues 1 

for the first ten percent of the economic life of the 2 

facility, obviously it's a concern.  But you do have 3 

to remember these are long-term projects. 4 

  Now, the other thing, of course, is we 5 

want to make sure people can get to our site.  It 6 

doesn't do us any good to have a traffic jam at the 7 

front door.  And I'm not a traffic engineer, but I'm 8 

guessing that in the interim it's going to depend a 9 

lot on exactly how PennDOT builds that.  Because as 10 

they're building the interchange, they'll be shifting 11 

traffic lines from one spot to another, and we will 12 

need to coordinate with them to make sure that traffic 13 

continues to move through the area, as well as to and 14 

from our facility. 15 

  Anyway, on that, we've told you what we 16 

hope to build and what it looks like and how that will 17 

be a big asset for Philadelphia, but you probably 18 

don't know much about us.  So let me turn this over to 19 

Wade Hundley, who is our president, to explain a 20 

little better who Pinnacle is. 21 

  MR. HUNDLEY: 22 

  Thanks, Dan.  And I'm going to stand as 23 

well.  Pinnacle actually has a very long, storied 24 

history.  The company was originally founded in 1938, 25 
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with the construction of the Hollywood Park Racetrack. 1 

And the company really existed as really a  2 

single-asset company for 60 years, until the late 3 

1990s or mid 1990s.  The company decided that it 4 

wanted to enter the casino and gambling industry, and 5 

with that acquired Boomtown, Inc., in 1997, and then a 6 

year after that acquired Casino Magic.  And shortly 7 

thereafter, disposed of the Hollywood Park Racetrack, 8 

and then changed its name to Pinnacle.  So Pinnacle 9 

has only been called Pinnacle since 2000, but had a 10 

long history for many years before that.  After that, 11 

in 2002, the current existing management team decided 12 

to relocate the company to Las Vegas.  Las Vegas is 13 

really the center of the casino industry or the gaming 14 

industry, and so we believe it's a big advantage to be 15 

located there.  If you can go to the next slide, you 16 

can see --- we used to have a slide that kind of 17 

showed the building that we're located in.  There it 18 

is.  We're located in the Howard Hughes Center, in the 19 

Wells Fargo Tower, there on the top floor of that 20 

tower, as well as a few additional floors.  We're 21 

right in the heart of Las Vegas.  And it gives us some 22 

advantages.  One, it allows us to attract the best and 23 

the brightest in our industry.  And most of the people 24 

that worked in this industry have a long experience in 25 
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it.  Many of them lived in Las Vegas or want to live 1 

there, and so we're able to attract the best and the 2 

brightest to our company.  And we think we've done a 3 

pretty good job of that over the last few years and 4 

built a great team.  5 

  In addition to that, it allows us to walk 6 

around and learn a lot of things.  There's a lot of 7 

very innovative things, projects in Las Vegas.  We've 8 

spent a lot of time walking those competitive 9 

projects, learning new stuff, seeing the newest and 10 

latest and greatest things, and then bringing them to 11 

our projects outside of Las Vegas.  The other 12 

advantage it gives us is many of the consultants and 13 

architects that are experts in building these projects 14 

are based in Las Vegas, and so we're next door.  It's 15 

easy access.  We spend a lot of time with our 16 

designers and consultants, and it makes it very 17 

convenient to do that.  Also, many of the gaming 18 

vendors are also based there.  So similarly, when 19 

we're negotiating contracts it's pretty easy to go 20 

across the street rather than having to get on a plane 21 

and go somewhere else.   22 

  Our core philosophy is to design and 23 

develop the best projects.  Pretty simple.  And I 24 

think if you'll go to our latest projects, we've done 25 
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just that.  And we would intend to do that in 1 

Philadelphia as well.  We prefer to build rather than 2 

acquire.  Although the company, back in its former 3 

history, acquired Boomtown and Casino Magic, we now 4 

focus on developing our projects from scratch.  And we 5 

think there's some advantages to that.  One, we can 6 

build them right from the beginning and we can build 7 

them to last the test of time.  And so with staying 8 

power we can look at what's there and we can create 9 

something that the customer would prefer to go to.  We 10 

listen to the customer a lot.  We do a lot of focus 11 

groups, a lot of surveys with customers.  They kind of 12 

tell us what they want in a project and we listen to 13 

them and then try to react to their desires.  We build 14 

multidimensional entertainment facilities.  You can 15 

see in Dan's book a lot about this, so I won't spend a 16 

lot of time on it.  But we believe our facilities 17 

ought to be very attractive to somebody that gambles 18 

and somebody that doesn't.  And we've heard that.  I 19 

was just down in Lake Charles last week for the 20 

election that Dan had mentioned, and time and time 21 

again we heard people coming up and say to us, you 22 

know, I don't like gambling, I don't gamble, but I 23 

voted for your project because you guys are different. 24 

You guys --- we go to dinner at your project all the 25 
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time.  We go to see a show.  We don't go in the 1 

casino.  We might walk through the casino, but we 2 

don't gamble.  But we still like what you do.  And so 3 

that's important to us.  We think that makes us 4 

different from many of our competitors in our 5 

industry.  We focus on the customer experience.  6 

Repeat business is just critical to us.  A lot of 7 

businesses can get people in the doors.  It's whether 8 

you're able to keep them coming back again and again 9 

that makes you successful.  And it's really --- you 10 

know, the bricks and mortar are great, and I think we 11 

have a real expertise in that, but it's also the 12 

people that work in our facilities that keeps people 13 

coming back again and again.  People form 14 

relationships with our team members, and that's what 15 

we hear time and time again from our customers.  16 

That's why they come back and see us. 17 

  We are very geographically diverse, and 18 

we're getting more so every day.  We have three 19 

properties today existing, located in Louisiana, one 20 

in Bossier City, a Boomtown property in Bossier City, 21 

Louisiana.  That really draws from the Dallas markets. 22 

It's about three hours away from Dallas and draws from 23 

Dallas and everything in between that and the 24 

Shreveport/Bossier area.  We have a Boomtown property 25 
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in New Orleans, on the West Bank side of New Orleans, 1 

actually the side of the river that didn't flood in 2 

the hurricanes.  We were very fortunate about that.  3 

It does very, very well.  It's really a locals-type 4 

casino down there that draws from people, the West 5 

Bank of New Orleans.  And it's been very, very 6 

successful.  It's one of the most successful casinos 7 

in all of Louisiana.  And then our newest project, 8 

L'Auberge du Lac, down in Lake Charles, we've 9 

mentioned that quite a bit.  That property is the 10 

number one property in Louisiana today.  It is doing 11 

over $20 million of gaming revenue per month and is 12 

just over a year old.  And as Dan mentioned, we're 13 

already in the process of expanding it.  We have a 14 

Boomtown property in Reno, Nevada.  It's the oldest 15 

property in our portfolio.  We've recently signed a 16 

deal with Cabela's.  I don't know if you're familiar 17 

with Cabela's.  I see we have a bass pro here.  18 

Cabela's is kind of a bass pro competitor.  They are 19 

actually --- we have 500 acres at our Boomtown site.  20 

And they are actually developing a Cabela's 21 

immediately next door, which should help our prospects 22 

a lot.  Belterra in southern Indiana, that really is 23 

between --- draws from the --- it's about 40 minutes 24 

from Cincinnati, about an hour from Louisville.  25 
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That's a --- it's the nicest property in that region. 1 

If anybody's been to Belterra, a very high-quality 2 

resort, with a Tom Fazio Golf Course and many other 3 

things.  We are building a project --- you know, we're 4 

building our two projects in St. Louis.  As Dan 5 

mentioned, we'll talk a little bit more about them 6 

here in a second.  We have a new project in Lake 7 

Charles, Sugarcane Bay.  We have four --- an existing 8 

property down in the Bahamas, at the Four Seasons, 9 

Exuma.  If anybody hasn't been there, it's a great 10 

place to go in the winter to get a little warmer.  We 11 

have a casino there.  Four Seasons approached us and 12 

asked us to build a casino at the resort, which we 13 

were happy to do.  And we formed quite a relationship 14 

with Four Seasons as a result.  And we have five 15 

existing properties in Neuquen Province of Argentina. 16 

So we are international and operate those projects 17 

quite successfully.  Also, I should mention the --- 18 

the one thing I didn't mention was our recent or near 19 

recent purchase of the Sands in Atlantic City.  So 20 

that property will close.  That purchase will close 21 

later this week, and we'll have a nice site to some 22 

day build a casino in Atlantic City. 23 

  Our corporate vision is to create a 24 

national network of premium gaming and entertainment 25 
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properties, really to be in --- eventually be in every 1 

major gaming market across the United States.  And the 2 

network, we think, is a very important factor for us. 3 

Harrah's does this quite well.  Gamblers like to go 4 

places where they can earn points, a frequent flyer 5 

program, if you will.  We have a similar thing in our 6 

industry where they can earn points to go different 7 

places within our network.  And I think the bigger the 8 

network gets, the more powerful that becomes.  And 9 

we're starting to see the impact of that in the 10 

process of building that network. 11 

  Develop and operate high-quality venues 12 

that cater to customers.  Once again, be the best in 13 

the market, treat the customers the best, have the 14 

highest-quality service.  And we think we do that 15 

pretty well.   16 

  Provide excellent career opportunities 17 

for our employees.  Our employees are a member of our 18 

family.  We have a Pinnacle family.  We take care of 19 

those people.  We preach miles of smiles.  You get 20 

miles of smiles when you have happy employees.  And 21 

happy employees make for happy customers.  It's a nice 22 

circle.  When we have happy customers, then our 23 

communities are happy, cities and states are happy 24 

because we earn more tax dollars for them.  And 25 
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ultimately our shareholders are happy because their 1 

share price goes up.  So it all works together, and it 2 

starts with taking care of people within your family 3 

and treating each other like family, and we do that. 4 

  And finally, we embrace diversity at all 5 

levels.  It's a key, core component of what we do from 6 

the top.  It starts with Dan and myself.  We preach 7 

that every day.  And I think we're getting better and 8 

better at it all the time.  And diversity is a big 9 

part at all levels of our organization. 10 

  L'Auberge du Lac, as we've mentioned it, 11 

this is just a picture of L'Auberge.  It draws from 12 

the Houston market and has been very, very successful. 13 

We're already expanding it, taking it to a thousand 14 

rooms.  It has a Tom Fazio Golf Course, first-class 15 

spa, a leisure or pool area.  So it's unlike anything 16 

that's in the region, and I think it kind of speaks 17 

for itself.  We'd love for you to go see it if you 18 

ever got the chance.  That really kind of speaks for 19 

what we do.   20 

  Belterra, I mentioned that, in southern 21 

Indiana, draws from the Cincinnati market.  Belterra, 22 

as you can see here, started with the original tower 23 

which opened in October of 2000.  We've already 24 

expanded it once with the second tower, which opened 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

71   71 

just a year and a half ago.  And then we're in the 1 

process of expanding it to --- we'll eventually have 2 

900 rooms.  You can see the expansion tower back 3 

there, once again, a Fazio golf course, full-blown 4 

resort, restaurants, high-quality restaurants.  It's 5 

the best property in this region. 6 

  Boomtown, New Orleans.  You can see 7 

Boomtown, New Orleans is a property that was acquired 8 

as part of the Boomtown acquisition.  All of our 9 

properties, we look every day on how we can improve 10 

them, either expand them, improve them, look at what's 11 

working, look at what's not, learn from what we see in 12 

Las Vegas or other properties in different regions, 13 

and then bring them to our properties.  And we're 14 

doing that here.  We've made a number of enhancements 15 

already since our management team has come in the last 16 

four years.  And were in the process of expanding and 17 

improving this property as we speak. 18 

  Boomtown, Bossier City, as well, it's a 19 

nice little property, does very well for us.  Draws 20 

from the Dallas market. 21 

  And Boomtown, Reno, I've mentioned that 22 

really draws from northern California and the Reno 23 

market itself and does very well.  And actually, we 24 

know it's going to do a lot better.  And we have the 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

72   72 

500 acres where we can develop around it and improve 1 

our surrounding area.        2 

  You can see a picture of the Emerald Bay 3 

--- the Four Seasons Resort down in Exuma.  A 4 

beautiful place.  And we just opened a casino last 5 

summer --- or this past summer, and it's doing well.  6 

Our customers love it.  We actually have customers 7 

from some of our other properties that they go down 8 

there once in a while.  And it kind of speaks to the 9 

network approach. 10 

  Casino Magic, Argentina.  We opened a new 11 

facility down in Argentina.  You can see the old one, 12 

it was just a --- basically a shed in a parking lot 13 

when we acquired it.  And we've now built a new 14 

facility down there.  It opened just over a year ago. 15 

And the, you know, cash flows and revenues are up 16 

substantially since we did that.  We've got four other 17 

little properties down there as well.  That's the 18 

biggest one. 19 

  St. Louis City, you can see a rendering 20 

of what we're creating in St. Louis.  We have two 21 

properties, this one in the city and then also one in 22 

the county.  This one will be our next property to 23 

open.  It will open about a year from now.  We have 18 24 

acres right in the heart of St. Louis.  You can see 25 
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where we are from the next slide in the development 1 

process.  We're well underway, going gangbusters.  2 

Actually, we probably added two or three floors since 3 

this picture has been taken.  But we're actively, you 4 

know, blowing and going in St. Louis, and we'll open 5 

in a year at this facility. 6 

  We asked the mayor and a couple of the 7 

leaders in the St. Louis community just to make a few 8 

comments about what it's been like to work with 9 

Pinnacle over the last couple years. 10 

PRERECORDED TESTIMONY OF MAYOR SLAY 11 

  MAYOR SLAY: 12 

  Hello.  This is Mayor Francis Slay.  The 13 

Pinnacle project is a tremendously important project 14 

for downtown St. Louis.  We are experiencing a 15 

renaissance here in St. Louis, and this project is a 16 

big part of that.  Pinnacle is bringing a high-quality 17 

development to our downtown, one of the largest ever. 18 

They have been a great partner in our efforts to 19 

revitalize downtown, and we're all excited about this 20 

project. 21 

PRERECORDED TESTIMONY OF RODNEY CRIM 22 

  MR. CRIM: 23 

  Pinnacle really understands how their 24 

investment in downtown fits within the whole puzzle of 25 
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downtown development.  Pinnacle's planning works well 1 

with other development.  Pinnacle's investment is 2 

capable of working with and attracting additional 3 

investment in downtown.  We appreciate having Pinnacle 4 

as a partner.   5 

PRERECORDED TESTIMONY OF CHARLIE DOOLEY 6 

  MR. DOOLEY: 7 

  It means $25 million revenue per year, 8 

minimum.  It means a new community center for the Lee 9 

May area.  It means economic activity.  It means 2,000 10 

new jobs, 1,000 part-time jobs for construction.  It 11 

means bringing that community alive, that someone 12 

really cares about where they live and to see them 13 

move forth with good quality jobs, with good benefits, 14 

to increase their quality of life. 15 

  MR. HUNDLEY: 16 

  So that gives you an idea of what those 17 

leaders think about working with.  I might mention, 18 

Charlie mentioned $25 million for the Lee May or South 19 

County community in annual tax revenue.  This project, 20 

our Philadelphia project, we project to do $220 21 

million-plus in tax revenues just from Phase I alone. 22 

That's about $200 million for the Commonwealth of 23 

Pennsylvania and an additional $20 million-plus for 24 

the City of Philadelphia.  So a big economic impact 25 
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that we will make. 1 

  When we went out and started looking for 2 

a partner for our Philadelphia project, it had to be a 3 

partner that could really add value.  And more 4 

importantly, it had to be somebody that we trusted and 5 

was a great person.  And I think we have found exactly 6 

that, you know, in Bob Johnson.  We've gotten to know 7 

Bob over the last couple years.  We've looked at 8 

several things together.  We've been trying to figure 9 

out a way to do business together.  And the 10 

Philadelphia project is really a perfect fit for us 11 

and, I believe, for him.  You'll hear from him here in 12 

a second.  Bob is going to put in real money into this 13 

project, his own money into Philadelphia.  He adds 14 

star power to the project with his entertainment 15 

contacts and relationships that I think can be a big 16 

benefit to this project, getting people in the door.  17 

Then we have to take care of them and keeping them 18 

coming back.  And it really, I think, reinforces 19 

Pinnacle's commitment to diversity and opportunity, 20 

and I think Bob is going to help us even enhance that 21 

even more.  So with that, I'll turn it over to Bob 22 

Johnson. 23 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER:  24 

  Excuse me.  We're going to take about a 25 
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five-minute break, if you don't mind.  We've been 1 

sitting too much for the last few days.  Excuse us.  2 

SHORT BREAK TAKEN 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 4 

  We're going to reconvene the hearing.  5 

And before we get started, I would like to ask Susan 6 

Hensel, our Director of Licensing, to comment on the 7 

status of the application of this applicant. 8 

  MS. HENSEL: 9 

  Of PNK?  I'm sorry, Chairman Decker? 10 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 11 

  I'll say it again.  I would like to know 12 

the status of the applicant that appears before us 13 

today. 14 

  MS. HENSEL: 15 

  Of PNK, the applicant? 16 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 17 

  Yes.  Is there another applicant? 18 

  MS. HENSEL: 19 

  Yes. 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Okay. 22 

  MS. HENSEL: 23 

  I mean, are you talking about a 24 

particular ---? 25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  Of PNK --- the applicant that we're 2 

considering, I'd like to know the status of that as of 3 

now and what we're considering, what was filed,      4 

et cetera, okay, --- 5 

  MS. HENSEL: 6 

  Okay. 7 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 8 

  --- so we understand what we're talking 9 

about right now. 10 

  MS. HENSEL: 11 

  We received applications from PNK PA and 12 

all of its affiliated companies and all of its key 13 

employee qualifiers.  In addition, at the beginning of 14 

October we received an application for Robert Johnson. 15 

That application was followed after the receipt of the 16 

second half of the application, which came in on 17 

October 13th with a request for a pre-suitability 18 

investigation of Mr. Johnson.  A pre-suitability 19 

investigation allows the Bureau of Licensing to 20 

process the application and the Bureau of 21 

Investigations and Enforcement to investigate someone 22 

and with the intent that, should a person want to come 23 

in later as an owner, the work that the Bureau of 24 

Licensing and the Bureau of Investigation and 25 
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Enforcement must conduct will already have been 1 

conducted.  And the Board will have before it the 2 

information that it needs to render a suitability 3 

decision, should someone come in at a later point as 4 

an owner.  Now, depending on the timing of that 5 

ownership change, that information may need to be 6 

updated.  But it does allow us to get at least the 7 

groundwork laid for a later character and financial 8 

suitability determination by the Board. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  So who are we considering?  In other 11 

words, as of the date of October 13th, what ownership 12 

positions are we considering for PNK? 13 

  MS. HENSEL: 14 

  As of the date of October 13th, we were 15 

considering those who had an ownership interest on 16 

that date, which would have been PNK PA, which is 17 

wholly owned by Pinnacle. 18 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 19 

  Make sure we're doing apples and apples 20 

with respect to the other applicants. 21 

  MS. HENSEL: 22 

  Yes.  Yes.  We had a cutoff on October 23 

13th, at which point all applicants had to --- it was 24 

a line in the sand for determination on who would be 25 
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before the Board for consideration when you take up 1 

your licensing decisions and who would not.  And the 2 

ownership stakes were basically frozen as of October 3 

13th. 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 5 

  Thank you, Ms. Hensel.  For the 6 

applicant, we're not going to tell you who to put on 7 

or who not to put on as a witness, but we do tell you 8 

that we're considering your application as it stood on 9 

October 13th and we're not considering any amendments 10 

to that application.  So we're not considering Mr. 11 

Johnson as an applicant.  So if you want to present 12 

Mr. Johnson, it's totally up to you.  We're not going 13 

to tell you how to do your case, but we're not going 14 

to consider Mr. Johnson as part of the application. 15 

  MR. LEE: 16 

  We understand and recognize that Pinnacle 17 

is fully prepared to do this wholly owned and fully 18 

capable of it.  However, we found ourselves in a 19 

catch-22 because we've been dealing with Mr. Johnson 20 

for a long time.  This is a very serious potential 21 

partnership, with a lot of money involved.  He has 22 

very good lawyers.  We have very good lawyers.  It 23 

took us a while to get it hashed out. 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 
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  We were saying before, just in our back 1 

room, that maybe there are too many layers.  They were 2 

quoting Shakespeare.  So maybe it applies to your 3 

situation as well. 4 

  MR. LEE: 5 

  But the bottom line is, we did sign an 6 

agreement with him that would take effect if and when 7 

we have your approval, and we didn't want to hide that 8 

fact. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  No, we appreciate that.   11 

  MR. LEE: 12 

  So we thought, you know, to have a whole 13 

presentation and kind of pretend that that agreement 14 

doesn't exist wouldn't be right either.  So I think we 15 

all understand where we stand.  And I'm quite happy to 16 

share a little bit of our time with Mr. Johnson to 17 

explain his background and what he could potentially 18 

bring to us. 19 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 20 

  Thank you.   21 

  MR. JOHNSON: 22 

  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and members of 23 

the Board.  I'm delighted to be here.  My name is 24 

Robert L. Johnson.  I'm the founder of Black 25 
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Entertainment Television.  I founded Black 1 

Entertainment Television in 1980, with the support of 2 

a $500,000 investment from a gentleman by the name of 3 

John Malone, who was the president of one of the large 4 

cable companies at that time.   5 

  In 1991, Black Entertainment Television 6 

became the first African-American company publicly 7 

traded on the New York Stock Exchange.  And in the 8 

year 2001, I sold Black Entertainment Television to 9 

Viacom for approximately $3 billion.  Interesting to 10 

note, John Malone's $500,000 investment in 1980 11 

yielded him $850 million in stock.  So he made out 12 

pretty good. 13 

  Since that time, since I left Black 14 

Entertainment Television, I decided on my second act, 15 

and that act took me to become the first  16 

African-American to be majority owner of a sports 17 

team.  I own the MBA basketball team the Charlotte 18 

Bobcats.  In addition, because of my background in the 19 

hotel industry, I served on the board of Hilton Hotels 20 

for approximately 12 years.  I branched out into hotel 21 

ownership, and today I own over 130 hotels through a 22 

hotel real estate fund representing about $3 billion 23 

in total assets.  And in addition to that, I've 24 

involved myself in the financial services sector, 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

82   82 

owning a federal thrift bank located in Washington, 1 

D.C. and Orlando, a private equity firm in partnership 2 

with The Carlyle Group, one of the largest private 3 

equity companies, a hedge fund of funds with Deutsche 4 

Bank.  In addition, I am involved in the movie 5 

business.  And finally, which applies here, which led 6 

me to Wade and Dan, I'm involved in the gaming 7 

business, the VLT business in the Caribbean with a 8 

number of licenses. 9 

  I first met Wade particularly when I was 10 

looking at an opportunity in Turks and Caicos.  And 11 

Wade was good enough to help me and advise me on 12 

whether or not this was an opportunity.  And I pursued 13 

that with Wade and built a relationship with him.  And 14 

when he talked about what they were trying to do in 15 

cities around the country, we started talking about 16 

Philadelphia as a gaming opportunity in the VLT 17 

business and I said it's something I'd be interested 18 

in doing.   19 

  I have a great deal of confidence and 20 

respect for Wade and Dan for their ability and their 21 

commitment to developing superior projects that are an 22 

important part of the community.  I think they've told 23 

their story exceptionally well here.  I look at this, 24 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Board, as an 25 
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opportunity for an African-American to be involved in 1 

a gaming business that, for a large part, many of the 2 

customers of this business will be from the  3 

African-American community.  And I think it's 4 

appropriate that the state and the Gaming Board, in 5 

its policies, encourage diversity of ownership, as 6 

well as diversity of economic participation in these 7 

licenses.  And one of the roles that I hope to play 8 

with Pinnacle, and I'm sure I will have, without 9 

question, the support and blessings of Wade and Dan in 10 

this, is to make sure that Pinnacle represents a 11 

commitment to diversity, not only in ownership, which 12 

I will bring to the table with my capital, but also 13 

diversity of opportunity.  And this is something that 14 

I've done throughout my career.  One of the things I'm 15 

most proud of is that BET went from being a startup 16 

company to a public company to a company I bought back 17 

and then sold.  And in that process, Black 18 

Entertainment Television has created more      19 

African-American multi-millionaires than any company 20 

in this country, including major Wall Street firms, 21 

because we got people in on the ground floor.   22 

  Interestingly enough, as an aside, I 23 

happen to have working for me now 15 black  24 

multi-millionaires.  It just so happens they’re 25 
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basketball players, but --- it shows you how much they 1 

get paid, so ---.  But we are committed to creating 2 

diversity of opportunity, diversity of business, 3 

opportunities in procurement, opportunities in 4 

employment, opportunities in involvement in 5 

restaurants, opportunities in involvement in service 6 

providers.  And that's my reason for being here, along 7 

with seeing a unique opportunity.  And so I'm 8 

delighted that you gave me this opportunity to speak, 9 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Board.  I would be 10 

more delighted if I'm allowed to participate with Dan 11 

and Wade in the PNK property. 12 

  One of the things that I was also tasked 13 

to do is to bring various celebrities to this 14 

opportunity because, as you know, gaming is an 15 

exciting entertainment product.  And having --- as 16 

casinos do in Vegas, whether it's having Celine Dion 17 

performing or other celebrities performing at casinos, 18 

they use that to attract other customers.  And 19 

obviously, I think Philadelphia is an exciting city 20 

with a great entertainment history, so if we can marry 21 

it and in some ways match up the personalities and 22 

celebrities who will be a part of this, then I also 23 

think that it's going to be a great effort.  So I've 24 

talked to a number of celebrities.  And one that I 25 
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will be delighted to tell you will be joining me 1 

again, assuming he is found suitable by the Gaming 2 

Board and we're able to be a part of this investment, 3 

will be my partner in the Charlotte Bobcats, Michael 4 

Jordan.   5 

  In addition, one of my assignments was to 6 

find strong local partners.  I'm from Washington, 7 

D.C., as you know, and it's vitally important that 8 

local businesspeople be allowed to participate, not 9 

simply someone who's outside of the market who happens 10 

to have capital.  So I have identified to date, again, 11 

five businesspeople, local businesspeople in 12 

Philadelphia who would be known as household names in 13 

the Philadelphia community, African-Americans, who 14 

will be a part of this project as well, assuming they 15 

are found suitable by the Gaming Board and comply with 16 

Pinnacle's compliance requirements and we are allowed 17 

to go forward.  So it is --- I'm very excited about 18 

this.  I want to assure you that I have obviously the 19 

commitment, the personal commitment to be a part of 20 

the Philadelphia community, even though I don't live 21 

here.  I certainly have the capital to invest in this. 22 

And I believe that the partnership between myself, 23 

Pinnacle, the local businesspeople, other celebrities, 24 

will do nothing but strengthen the success of this 25 
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facility in Philadelphia and contribute to its role as 1 

being a catalyst for economic development and cultural 2 

opportunity in the City of Philadelphia.  Thank you 3 

very much.    4 

  MR. HUNDLEY:  5 

  Thanks, Bob.  And we certainly are 6 

excited to have the opportunity or the potential to 7 

work with Bob, not only on this project but on things 8 

to come in the future.  In terms of Pinnacle's 9 

operating philosophy, I've touched on it briefly 10 

before, but we really strive to provide higher-quality 11 

experience than our competitors in the markets that 12 

we're in.  And we do that --- really everything you 13 

see in our facilities, the way that we train our 14 

people, the way that they act toward the customer when 15 

you call in to make a reservation or call in to redeem 16 

a promotion or whatever, it's how our agents deal with 17 

you and that experience.  Everything is part of the 18 

experience.  All our venues, it's part of the overall 19 

experience and enhancing that experience.  And that's 20 

the way we approach the business and think it's very 21 

important. 22 

  We sacrifice short-term gains to deliver 23 

a quality product.  There's a lot of companies in our 24 

industry that do very, very well, and they're good at 25 
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what they do, but their focus is getting their money 1 

back as quickly as they can.  That's not our 2 

philosophy.  And if you go to our projects, you can 3 

see where we spent extra money both on our facilities 4 

and on our customers in terms of what we offer them.  5 

We are in this for the long term.  We believe if we 6 

treat our customers right, if we build high-quality 7 

products, we're going to be successful over time, and 8 

we're going to get a fine return as a result of that. 9 

Customer satisfaction, again, leads to repeat 10 

business.  And that's the name of the game.  That's 11 

what we stress.  We got to keep our people coming back 12 

again and again. 13 

  Our properties create many opportunities 14 

for local businesses, existing and prospective.  We 15 

seek out local partners for the components of our 16 

project.  For instance, we'll go to --- as part of 17 

this project, we would expect to bring in some local 18 

business --- or some local restaurateurs to be a part 19 

of this project.  That adds to --- that gives us local 20 

flavor.  That just helps us.  There's a lot of very 21 

high-quality restaurateurs, and we expect them to be a 22 

part of this.  And we have venues which they could 23 

operate in.  We'd act as a landlord in that case.  24 

Also, retail would allow us to do some of that.  We 25 
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also are great for local vendors.  We buy many of our 1 

products locally.  That's what we try to do first, 2 

either local, statewide or Commonwealth-wide in this 3 

case.  We would expect to buy most of our goods and 4 

services from local businesses.  We're also, as Bob 5 

had mentioned and we've mentioned before, committed to 6 

diversity at every stage.  And that includes 7 

purchasing products for our operations. 8 

  We're also very involved in the 9 

communities in which we operate.  And we would expect 10 

to be so here.  In 2005, we committed $1.5 million to 11 

local charities where we operate.  We're well on our 12 

way to doing the same in 2006.  And in addition to 13 

that, in addition to this money, we provide tens of 14 

thousands of hours of community service from our team 15 

members.  And our team members sit on boards of these 16 

local charities.  They're actively involved.  We get 17 

really involved in the places where we operate, with 18 

the people that surround our facilities. 19 

  With that, I would like to turn it over 20 

to Barbara Grant from the firm Cardenas Grant 21 

Communications to talk about what we've been doing in 22 

Philadelphia on the community side specifically. 23 

  MS. GRANT: 24 

  Many of the gentlemen preferred to stand. 25 
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I am grateful for this seat.  Thank you.  And I thank 1 

you for giving me an opportunity to address you this 2 

morning.  I came to Philadelphia when I was 16 years 3 

old to attend the University of Pennsylvania, and I 4 

fell in love with the city and its people.  I've lived 5 

in a lot of places in the Philadelphia region, 6 

including the suburbs.  I've lived in Old City, in a 7 

luxury condo, and I've lived in neighborhoods where if 8 

you opened your window on a Saturday night you could 9 

hear gunfire in the streets.  But for all of its 10 

complex fabric, Philadelphia is my home.  And this 11 

region is a region that I have planted very, very deep 12 

roots in.  And I'm proud to be a part of the Pinnacle 13 

Entertainment team and what it hopes to bring to this 14 

city. 15 

  Our work for Pinnacle involved the 16 

introduction of this company to a dynamic and vibrant 17 

metro area that's in the midst of an incredible 18 

revitalization.  And our approach focused on first 19 

localizing the diversity plan in a city where you have 20 

an African-American population of 45 percent.  And 21 

then if you start to add in Latinos and Asians and all 22 

of the other kinds of groups that are collecting in 23 

our city, you have almost a 60 percent minority 24 

population.  It was very important to us not only to 25 
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work in the immediate neighborhood affected by this 1 

proposed development, but to go city-wide, because 2 

everyone in Philadelphia has a stake in what these 3 

casino developments will bring.  So we met --- we 4 

conducted city-wide meetings with leaders and 5 

organizations in the city to make sure that in a city 6 

as diverse as ours, we ensure that traditionally 7 

underserved communities, who have frequently been 8 

locked out of economic opportunity, would have a 9 

chance to build relationships with a multi-billion 10 

international corporation --- multi-billion dollar 11 

international corporation who would have such a major 12 

impact on their lives.  So we met as a sampling with 13 

social and civic groups, including the NAACP, the 14 

Urban League, the Pennsylvania Statewide Coalition, 15 

which is a Latino coalition which is an umbrella group 16 

for a rapidly-growing Latino population in the city 17 

and in the Commonwealth.  We talked to the Action 18 

Alliance of Senior Citizens.  We talked to Association 19 

of Puertorriquenos en Marcha, which is a 36-year-old 20 

human service and economic development organization 21 

serving both the Latino and the African-American 22 

community.   23 

  I have learned that at the heart of 24 

Pinnacle's corporate philosophy, as Wade has 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

91   91 

mentioned, there's a passion and concern for the 1 

people in their host communities.  In a city where our 2 

unemployment rate goes two or three times higher in 3 

minority communities than it does on average, we felt 4 

it was really important to engage in discussions with 5 

organizations that were addressing these problems and 6 

trying to help the quality of life in disadvantaged 7 

communities.  Hence, our discussions with some of the 8 

city's most experienced and active human service 9 

organizations to engage in an exchange of ideas about 10 

the economic impact of this project.  And we got a 11 

really positive reception and I think the beginning of 12 

true relationship building should we receive a 13 

license.   14 

  Again, as a sample of the comprehensive 15 

and inclusive outreach program that we conducted, we 16 

met with community development organizations who are 17 

dedicated to neighborhood revitalization and improving 18 

the quality of life in their communities.  We talked 19 

with people in the public, private and nonprofit 20 

leadership of Philadelphia, our Chambers of Commerce. 21 

We had a really good discussion with Mark Schweiker, 22 

with the African-American Chamber and with the 23 

Chinatown Community Development Corporation.  We 24 

visited city officials, worked very, very closely with 25 
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Councilman DiCicco, who is the district councilman in 1 

the affected areas, as well as council people at 2 

large.  We thought it was important to include them.  3 

And they had been largely overlooked, but their 4 

constituents truly will benefit from one of the most 5 

important factors that will change life in 6 

Philadelphia, which I'll talk about in a few minutes. 7 

  We also met with members of the minority 8 

contractors organizations and with key members of the 9 

hospitality and tourism organizations in our city, the 10 

Greater Philadelphia Tourism Marketing Corporation, 11 

Philadelphia Industrial Development Corporation, and 12 

the Pennsylvania Convention and Visitors' Bureau to 13 

help them understand how this will tie into the 14 

tourism and hospitality picture in the city. 15 

  Our approach was to familiarize key 16 

people in Philadelphia with PNK and the project and 17 

listen to their concerns and suggestions.  Some of the 18 

--- we talked a lot about design, but the design of 19 

this project was really made with the community in 20 

mind.  We wanted to talk about the benefits of an 21 

urban entertainment destination that could affect the 22 

entire city.  We felt all along that built with the 23 

community in mind, on the merits, that this project 24 

would be well received, and it was.  We've also spent 25 
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considerable time with three of the most respected 1 

workforce development agencies in the region because 2 

everyone, as I said, has a stake in the thousands of 3 

jobs that the advent of gaming will represent to the 4 

economic development picture of the city and its hopes 5 

and aspirations and the hopes and aspirations of its 6 

residents.  We talked to OIC, the Opportunities 7 

Industrialization Center, founded by the Reverend Leon 8 

Sullivan and now one of the oldest workforce 9 

development organizations in this city, as well as to 10 

the Jewish Employment and Vocational Service, JEVS 11 

Human Services, and the Philadelphia Workforce 12 

Development Corporation.   13 

  And I wanted to just read a quick excerpt 14 

from two of the letters that we received in support of 15 

Pinnacle's application, this one from Bob Nelson, who 16 

is president of and CEO of OIC.  He says that he has 17 

been making preliminary, quote, judgments, however 18 

intuitive, about what operators would be responsive 19 

and valuable partners toward the goal of training 20 

community residents for casino employment.  With OIC 21 

being one of the oldest and larger workforce 22 

development institutions in the region, we have to 23 

maintain our historical and contemporary focus on the 24 

provision of services to diverse populations, notably 25 
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African-Americans and Hispanics.  Pinnacle's 1 

application reflects that sensitivity.  And the    2 

non-gaming venues represent additional job 3 

opportunities which can only prove to the benefit of 4 

community residents.  I think the letter from JEVS, 5 

the Jewish Employment and Vocational Service, mirrors 6 

that sentiment and says in short, the location, scope 7 

and design of the Pinnacle project are exciting.  As 8 

you presented the details to us, we envision the 9 

opportunity to enjoy many of its  10 

non-gaming amenities and the Delaware River front.  We 11 

were also excited by the job opportunities for our 12 

clients in gaming and non-gaming businesses.  I think 13 

one of the important things and the thing that 14 

differentiates this project and that community people 15 

appreciated in this project was that it was not just a 16 

slots parlor, that a lot of the non-gaming amenities 17 

and the eventual, hopefully market-driven development 18 

of more hospitality venues will provide different 19 

kinds of employment opportunities for people in 20 

Philadelphia.  And so the workforce development 21 

agencies expressed an interest in supporting and 22 

partnering with us in the training and development of 23 

a workforce in Philadelphia, where jobs are very, very 24 

much needed.    25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

95   95 

  We also spent a lot of time with the 1 

neighborhood that's going to be immediately affected 2 

by the building of this, particularly in Fishtown, in 3 

New Kensington and Port Richmond.  I'm going to talk 4 

about that a little bit more in a moment.  But I just 5 

wanted to mention that we've also met with leading 6 

restaurateurs in the area, as we had mentioned.  We 7 

participated in the Daily News, University of 8 

Pennsylvania Praxis Design Forum.  And the impressive 9 

and the strength of the design that we presented I 10 

think was what really hits people most.  We've heard 11 

from people all over the city that they really love 12 

our project and think that it is different and a 13 

destination and a venue that is needed in this city.  14 

And I think that you will see in some of the materials 15 

that we submitted, some of the media coverage really 16 

reflects that from no lesser a light than the 17 

architecture critic at the Philadelphia Inquirer.  Two 18 

of the pieces that she did reflected her --- the fact 19 

that she was impressed with the design.  One of them 20 

was headlined surprisingly Worthy Winners, of which we 21 

were one, and the other, that Pinnacle may be the top 22 

slots design in this competition. 23 

  Before I close, I did want to spend a 24 

minute talking about our interaction with the Fishtown 25 
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neighbors.  We had numerous and are continuing 1 

discussions with leaders in Fishtown and Northern 2 

Liberty, Kensington and Port Richmond.  Our design was 3 

well received by these groups, particularly again the 4 

inclusion of the non-gaming amenities.  They didn't 5 

want just a slots parlor on the river edge.  The 6 

groups around the river front are growing more and 7 

more sophisticated as they see the developments and 8 

the desirability of the river front growing.  I mean, 9 

it's land that you couldn't have given away ten years 10 

ago and there's a complete transformation underway.  11 

And so they're getting more organized and focused on 12 

how that development should occur.  And so some of 13 

these conversations were complex and had some 14 

difficult moments.  But we have repeatedly heard that 15 

we've got the best design and the best site and that 16 

our project would probably have the least impact on 17 

the traffic issues that could develop when this is 18 

completed.  In fact, Councilman DiCicco cites that in 19 

his letter that was submitted to the Board.  But we 20 

also heard clearly about their concerns, traffic being 21 

the major one, and the impact of the project on a 22 

trend --- a changing quality of life in those 23 

neighborhoods.  And so should we receive a license, 24 

our pledge to them is that we will be an excellent 25 
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neighbor in a city that is known as a city of 1 

neighborhoods.   2 

  We issued a letter to the community 3 

indicating our willingness to address their concerns 4 

about traffic, community benefits, charitable giving 5 

and local employment.  What our letter said, in short, 6 

was that we are bringing 1,300 jobs into that 7 

community and that PNK looks to hire locally from the 8 

areas contiguous to the community --- to its location. 9 

I'm sorry. 10 

  We also looked and tried to impress them 11 

with the fact that everywhere else Pinnacle has gone 12 

they have created local opportunities for vendors and 13 

suppliers.  And one of the special things that's 14 

happening in Fishtown that the neighbors are very 15 

proud of is the fact that there are lots of little 16 

coffee shops and craft shops and things that are 17 

really changing the nature of the neighborhood and in 18 

which they place a lot of hopes for their future as a 19 

community.  And so there will be opportunities for 20 

those businessmen and shopkeepers to benefit from this 21 

project.  The neighborhood has asked us to continue 22 

discussions about the issue of community benefits, and 23 

certainly we're willing to do that.  24 

  In closing, I would just say that 25 
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Pinnacle takes pride in being a good corporate 1 

citizen.  I've traveled to one of their properties 2 

down in Lakes Charles just recently and was there on 3 

Election Day when that referendum was underway.  And 4 

it was really interesting and almost --- it was hard 5 

to believe the enthusiasm that their employees showed 6 

for getting that referendum passed.  And clearly there 7 

was self-interest, but they knew that those jobs were 8 

very important to that tiny community in Lake Charles. 9 

They were all wearing buttons that said, Say yea to 10 

the Bay, which was the kind of slogan that carried --- 11 

that was invented for the Sugarcane Bay project.  And 12 

what I noticed was that they had a big stake in being 13 

team members.  I went into the back of the House 14 

operations, and there was a big sign up there about 15 

the tuition reimbursement program.  And what it said 16 

was, why are you paying tuition when we can.  And so 17 

there were just lots of indications I thought that 18 

Pinnacle ran a well-rounded human service program, 19 

that it took care of the people that it worked for, 20 

because those people were the people in the community 21 

who were going to be affected by their project.   22 

  And so in summary I would just like to 23 

say that what we try to do with the local community   24 

--- this community that is in the immediate location 25 
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of the project was to offer the best proof that we 1 

could, which was proof in the pudding.  It’s what 2 

Pinnacle has a demonstrated track record of doing.  3 

And once again I just would like to close and leave 4 

you with the words of St. Louis County executive, 5 

Charlie Dooley about what he thought about the 6 

project. 7 

  MR. DOOLEY: 8 

  Pinnacle does have a community back for 9 

support of the community because of what they’ve done, 10 

how they approached this project and how they embrace 11 

the community, saying, what is it that you need?  How 12 

can we be of assistance?  We just don’t want to just 13 

be a business there.  We want to be a part of your 14 

community. 15 

  MS. GRANT: 16 

  Thank you. 17 

  MR. HUNDLEY: 18 

  Thanks, Barbara.  And Barbara’s done a 19 

great job of introducing us around the communities in 20 

Philadelphia and been an incredible addition to our 21 

team.  I would say that we do take personal pride in 22 

seeing our team members do well and we celebrate those 23 

successes.  I’d really like to, you know, promote from 24 

within rather than to have to go outside.  And I think 25 
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we’ve built a great deal of strength in our team at 1 

every level, and are able --- really enables us to 2 

take on these kind of projects.  With that I would 3 

like to turn it over to Humberto Trueba.  Humberto 4 

came to us about four years ago from City Group and 5 

then prior to that at Disney.  He’s brought a lot of 6 

knowledge and success to our team and has put in a lot 7 

of innovative programs on training and hiring. 8 

  MR. TRUEBA: 9 

  Thank you, Wade.  Buenos dias.  Did he 10 

catch it?  Yeah, that’s great.  I want to thank you 11 

Chairman and members of the Board for allowing me to 12 

talk a little bit about one of the things that I enjoy 13 

and it’s about people.  I care about people and, you 14 

know, when you’re in life and you are looking for a 15 

job --- I’ve never looked for a job.  To me my career 16 

was always to help people and I’m in the perfect --- 17 

as a senior vice president of human resource and I’m 18 

so proud to work with two individuals, Wade and Dan, 19 

to, you know, take care of the people of Pinnacle.  20 

And let me kind of share a little bit of what we’ve 21 

done and from our assessment so far we’re looking at  22 

--- from Phase I we’re looking at it from a 23 

construction job of hiring 1,200 individuals.  From an 24 

operating prospective, we’re looking at 1,300.  We 25 
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look at 3,500 individuals will be impacted 1 

economically through this and Phase II and III would 2 

look at 2,100 jobs in construction, another 1,900.  In 3 

total ---.  4 

  MR. MARSHALL: 5 

  Excuse me. 6 

  MR. TRUEBA: 7 

  Go ahead, sir. 8 

  MR. MARSHALL: 9 

  This is over the last three days.  Phase 10 

I in your project is the 3,000? 11 

  MR. TRUEBA: 12 

  No, Phase I is 1,300. 13 

  MR. LEE: 14 

  No, no, let me say it.  Phase I is the 15 

temporary --- well, there’s a temporary casino first 16 

with 2,000 slot machines. 17 

  MR. MARSHALL: 18 

  That’s the interim phase? 19 

  MR. LEE: 20 

  That’s the interim phase.  Right.  Phase 21 

I, which Cliff just lit up there is 3,000 slot 22 

machines, 3,000 parking spaces, retail space, movie 23 

theaters at the pond and the restaurants around the 24 

pond.  Phase II would be expanding the casino to 5,000 25 
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machines, pulling it forward into the surface lots and 1 

expanding the casino pulling it forward into the 2 

surface lots.  And then Phase III would be coming back 3 

at a later date and adding the high rises, which would 4 

be either hotels or condominiums depending on demand. 5 

  MR. MARSHALL: 6 

  Thank you. 7 

  MR. TRUEBA: 8 

  Thank you, Dan, for the assistance.  The 9 

second slide is extremely important to us.  When we 10 

look at human resources at Pinnacle it’s about the 11 

whole picture.  It’s the employment development 12 

process and there’s three major areas, sourcing and 13 

staffing, I’ll begin with that, is real critical for 14 

us.  And a lot of folks they look at the staffing 15 

rather than the sourcing.  What we did in Lake Charles 16 

Louisiana, we had a group of individuals that put 17 

together a process, a recruitment process, with a 18 

tool, an automated recruiting tool, that allowed us to 19 

take on many, many applications and résumés.  It was a 20 

very effective and efficient way to make sure that we 21 

had the candidates.  They interviewed for the specific 22 

job.  In addition, we were looking not just for --- 23 

you know, a lot of times a lot of individuals just in 24 

the interview process they’re looking for certain 25 
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words.  We were looking for --- for us it was all 1 

about attitude and our key thing is trying to 2 

understand --- trying to get individuals that have 3 

great attitudes and giving them the skill necessary to 4 

do their jobs.  And from an orientation and training 5 

perspective, one of the key areas and an area that 6 

sometimes is in organizations that --- it’s let go, 7 

and mainly it’s because they only spend two or three 8 

hours of training, is the orientation phase.  The 9 

orientation phase is probably the most critical phase 10 

in an individual going inside an organization. 11 

  At Disney we were taught that it all 12 

started with the culture.  It all started with the 13 

brand and one of the things that we try to do at 14 

Pinnacle with Dan’s assistance is we try to give some 15 

information, some of the cultural expectations that we 16 

expect from our employees.  Right off the bat they 17 

understand the customer service, the level of quality 18 

and details that we expect.  We can create the best 19 

buildings in the world, but it starts with the people, 20 

it starts with ownership.  So that’s one of the areas 21 

that they get that kind of information. 22 

  When it comes to developing leaders, 23 

which is probably one of the most critical things it’s 24 

not just, you know, the private sector working on 25 
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this.  It’s everyone working on developing leaders 1 

because, you know, if we’re going to be a great 2 

society, we’re going to have to have great leaders in 3 

places.  And to us we take tremendous amount of times 4 

and we bring in experts in instructional system design 5 

to develop great programs in leadership.  I take --- 6 

most of my time is spent reading through all the 7 

documents and making sure that we have the right 8 

leadership components in our training program. 9 

  The last component is performance 10 

management and it’s not just enough to just talk to 11 

individuals.  A lot of it is giving the coaching and 12 

feedback and making sure our management team 13 

understands that.  We have many job aids, materials 14 

and we have a lot of information within the 15 

organization that gets to the front line to make sure 16 

that this is one of the key things that we need to 17 

address and make sure that our employees have a good 18 

understanding of what they’re doing, if it’s a 19 

deficiency and how they can improve it. 20 

  The last thing is career management.  21 

Career management is an important thing in an 22 

organization.  And for us --- it’s been very easy for 23 

me because my CEO he had me when I started three years 24 

ago, said, you know, HT, why don’t we create some 25 
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incredible programs?  I know you’ve had the experience 1 

at Disney and we want to create something that kind of 2 

like takes us to the next planet when it comes to the 3 

casino industry, so we developed a couple of programs. 4 

In those programs we created a program called 5 

Executive Development Program and it was a program 6 

dedicated to those individuals that graduated from 7 

hospitality schools.  It was a way for us to bring 8 

some diversity into the organization and put those 9 

individuals in their position areas where they can 10 

really, truly gain the profit-and-loss experience and 11 

understand the business realms of what’s happening in 12 

the casino industry.  I want to say that that 13 

Executive Development Program is one of the best 14 

programs right now in Las Vegas. 15 

  The next slide is basically just showing 16 

you the results.  When we opened up L'Auberge, there 17 

was a lot of commitments that we made.  We made a lot 18 

of commitments with the Louisiana Gaming Control Board 19 

and they gave us some goals to follow.  In this chart, 20 

in this illustration, you can see from an actual 21 

perspective.  We met and exceeded most of the 22 

ethnicity requirements.   23 

  Now, I want to introduce to you Harry 24 

Moppins.  He’s our diversity compliance officer and 25 
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he’s worked with us for eight months now.  He was five 1 

years with St. Louis Minority Council.  He has his 2 

undergraduate degree from Washington University and a 3 

graduate degree from Western University. 4 

  MR. LEE: 5 

  In our enthusiasm for our project, we’re 6 

burning up the clock pretty fast, so we got four or 7 

five speakers left and I’d remind everybody to keep it 8 

pretty tight here. 9 

  MR. MOPPINS: 10 

  Good morning.  I would just like to read 11 

our statement.  I think it’s very important, where our 12 

diversity statements says, at Pinnacle Entertainment, 13 

Inc. we come from different backgrounds, beliefs, 14 

cultures, races, creeds, ages and experiences.  We 15 

value, respect and promote differences believing they 16 

create a better place to work and Pinnacle diversity 17 

works.  I would say that it’s really critical to 18 

understand that we walk the talk and that’s one of the 19 

reasons that we have developed a strategic plan to 20 

make certain that we are maximizing our opportunities 21 

to work with MWDBE firms that in operating this plan 22 

we’re doing our due diligence to make certain on a 23 

continuum that the program works.  That we do locate 24 

qualified MWDBEs throughout the communities where 25 
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we’re located and we become very strategic partners 1 

with those companies.  And I would say in the 2 

Philadelphia area we feel that that would be very 3 

important that we utilize those agencies and entities 4 

in the area to help us source out persons who are 5 

qualified to do the work.  We have partnered --- if 6 

you look at our other locations with firms with the 7 

design and construction of our projects in Lake 8 

Charles and St. Louis, and we’ve always looked for 9 

opportunities for MWDBEs to participate in our 10 

project.  And having such an outstanding reputation 11 

for developing high quality products we have not had a 12 

problem of people wanting to participate in working 13 

with us.  I would like to have Rodney Crim who is the 14 

executive director of St. Louis Development 15 

Corporation to talk about how we’ve been working from 16 

the diversity standpoint. 17 

  MR. CRIM: 18 

  Hello.  My name is Rodney Crim, the 19 

executive director of the St. Louis Development 20 

Corporation.  Pinnacle understands the business value 21 

in having a diverse workforce and diversity amongst 22 

contractors and vendors.  Even though this is a 23 

privately funded project Pinnacle has committed to 24 

aggressively pursuing the mayor’s MWDBE goals.  This 25 
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is a very important goal for us and for them.  1 

Pinnacle takes it very seriously and we appreciate 2 

that.  Pinnacle really understands how their 3 

investment in downtown fits within the whole puzzle of 4 

downtown development.  Pinnacle’s planning works well 5 

with other development.  Pinnacle’s investment is 6 

capable of working with and attracting additional 7 

investment in downtown.  We appreciate having Pinnacle 8 

as a partner. 9 

  MR. MOPPINS: 10 

  I would just like to state briefly that 11 

how we’ve been successful, we’ve had weekly meetings 12 

with Pinnacle, with our general contractors, with the 13 

representatives from the City of St. Louis and we have 14 

joint venture minority consultants who’ve worked with 15 

us.  We’ve had on a continuum outreach meetings to 16 

talk about our project in different phases and we’ve 17 

had network meetings where we brought the women and 18 

minorities --- companies together, the majority 19 

companies, to talk about the bid packages and see how 20 

the primes can potentially network with the 21 

minorities.  And our participation has been relatively 22 

successful throughout the project even when we’ve had 23 

to look at breaking down the bid packages so that we 24 

can make certain that we have a continuum of 25 
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participation.  And to close I’d like to say, 1 

throughout the process we’ve had very good press and 2 

media regarding inclusion on the project, and I 3 

believe you all have copies of some of that.  Thank 4 

you very much. 5 

  MR. HUNDLEY: 6 

  Thanks, Harry.  The other thing we really 7 

stress is our compliance programs.  Jack Godfrey in 8 

his past experiences with the State of Nevada and 9 

Gaming --- and representing gaming companies on the 10 

legal front he’s really been able to establish 11 

Pinnacle’s compliance process is really the model for 12 

the gaming industry.  Everybody that does business 13 

with us in any shape or form goes through this 14 

compliance process and it’s really to Jack’s credit 15 

that he’s led us in that direction.  With that I’ll 16 

introduce Jack Godfrey. 17 

  MR. GODFREY: 18 

  Thank you, Wade.  Good morning, Mr. 19 

Chairman, members of the Board and staff.  I 20 

appreciate speaking to you today.  At Pinnacle we 21 

understand the critical importance of character, 22 

honesty and integrity.  We have a very good track 23 

record in all the jurisdictions in which we operate. 24 

And as I tell the people at Pinnacle, credibility is 25 
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really the most valuable currency in the gaming 1 

industry.  It’s very difficult to obtain and it’s very 2 

easy to lose, so on a daily basis Pinnacle strives to 3 

maintain its credibility with its regulators and the 4 

communities in which we operate. 5 

  We have a comprehensive and effective 6 

compliance program at Pinnacle, which I’m the 7 

chairman.  Our compliance committee performs due 8 

diligence on persons and transactions to assure that 9 

Pinnacle does not involve itself with unsuitable 10 

associations or get itself involved in unsuitable 11 

situations. 12 

  I want to thank the staff of the 13 

Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board for the thoroughness 14 

and professionalism of their review, it compares 15 

extremely favorably with our experience in other 16 

jurisdictions.  We’ve enjoyed working with them and we 17 

know you have a very difficult task in a short period 18 

of time that you’ve been given to do this.  We hope 19 

that you’ll agree with the staff’s recommendation that 20 

we meet the statutes, eligibility requirements under 21 

Section 1304 of the Act and 441.4 of the regulations. 22 

With respect to our site we do have options on the 23 

parcels, which will comprise our site.  If licensed, 24 

we will exercise those options and be the fee owner of 25 
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the land upon which our project will be built.  Our 1 

attorneys are working on local zoning issues and we 2 

will comply with commercial entertainment district 3 

requirements. 4 

  The last thing I want to mention, a very 5 

important point, is problem gaming.  It’s a very 6 

serious issue.  We take it very seriously at Pinnacle 7 

and we’re in compliance with problem gaming 8 

regulations in the various jurisdictions in which we 9 

operate.  In addition we’re a member of the American 10 

Gaming Association and subscribe to their program and 11 

perform comprehensive training with all of our 12 

employees to work on this problem and will be very 13 

serious about addressing this problem in Pennsylvania 14 

if we’re licensed.  Thank you very much. 15 

  MR. HUNDLEY: 16 

  Thanks, Jack.  The last part of our 17 

presentation really has to do with how we’re going to 18 

pay for this great place there that we’ve designed, so 19 

with that I’d like to introduce Steve Capp, our CFO. 20 

  MR. CAPP: 21 

  Thank you, Wade.  And as the money guy, 22 

I’m happy to address the Board.  Good morning, Mr. 23 

Chairman and members of the Board.  Pleasure to speak 24 

with you here today.  I would like to share with you a 25 
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snapshot perspective of Pinnacle’s current financial 1 

position and our financial capability.  I think that’s 2 

probably the best way to summarize the multiple 3 

notebooks, I’m sure, of data that you’ve been provided 4 

by your very capable staff.  The first of those is 5 

that Pinnacle today commands significant financial 6 

resources.  Our cash on hand is in excess of $300 7 

million and I quote the cash balance at the end of our 8 

most recent fiscal quarter, September 30th, 2006.  We 9 

have traditionally maintained very high cash balance 10 

relative to our size in a conservative financial 11 

posture.  It’s just the way we like to operate the 12 

business.  We also have significant ongoing cash flow 13 

from operations.  Our most recent fiscal quarter 14 

documents that on the last 12-month basis for the last 15 

year our cash flow from operations was right around 16 

$200 million.  That’s a lot of reinvestable funds, if 17 

you will.  In addition we have now approved a $1 18 

billion credit facility, which is the largest in the 19 

company’s history to supplement our financial 20 

resources. 21 

  The second point I’d like to make is a 22 

demonstrated access to Capital Markets.  This is a 23 

critical feature of a capital structure for a growing 24 

development company and for us as we develop these 25 
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very worthwhile projects. 1 

  Next slide, please, Alex.  This is a 2 

brief list of the approaches we’ve made to the capital 3 

markets for capital funding in the last several years. 4 

There are about a dozen or so noted here.  The 5 

summation of all of these various capital raise 6 

efforts is about --- is a little over $3.5 billion.  7 

There are a number of important components in doing 8 

this.  What I think it all boils down to approaching 9 

Wall Street, asking for money, being positively 10 

received.  It’s really all about management 11 

credibility and there are certain components to that. 12 

  Back up.  Let’s stay on this one for a 13 

second, please.  First of those is delivering on your 14 

promises.  You know, we approach Wall Street, we tell 15 

Wall Street what we want to use the money for, whether 16 

we’re borrowing money or whether we’re raising equity 17 

in the form of a stock issuance.  And we have to make 18 

representations as to what we’re going to do with that 19 

money, what we expect the return to be and we have to 20 

deliver on those representations.  And we have 21 

delivered on those representations and that has 22 

enabled us to come back to the Street time and time 23 

again, and establish this track record of capital 24 

raising. 25 
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  Secondly would be you’ve got to put in 1 

the time up front, to do your homework to understand 2 

these projects so that when you decide to undertake 3 

one it proves to be a worthwhile project.  We do a lot 4 

of homework at Pinnacle.  We don’t go after the things 5 

that we don’t think works and that translates into the 6 

ability to deliver to Wall Street as well. 7 

  The third area of managing credibility I 8 

would tell you is, establishment of a track record of 9 

performance.  At the end of the day Wall Street is 10 

more interested in your operating performance and your 11 

returns than anything else.  This revenue chart, I 12 

think, is a little bit interesting because we’ve been 13 

able to grow the business nicely in the last several 14 

years.  That’s not as interesting as the bottom line 15 

cash flow, which is the next chart that we’ve taken as 16 

management tenure in the last several years up from 17 

low 40s to in excess of $200 million.  This is 18 

critically important to Wall Street.  This shows Wall 19 

Street we know what we’re doing and they entrust us as 20 

a warden of their capital time and time again. 21 

  So with that summary, let me introduce 22 

Mike Hartmeier who’s a managing director and head of 23 

the gaming, lodging and leisure sector at Lehman 24 

Brothers, one of the leading Wall Street banks who’s 25 
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our lead financial institution as well and has 1 

partnered with us in raising much of this capital.  2 

Mike’s from UCLA.  He’s kind of known as Football 3 

Mike.  Dan mentioned he’s played in a couple of Rose 4 

Bowls.  He privately confided in me that although he 5 

went to UCLA, he really wanted to play for Penn State, 6 

but Mike’s a good guy.  He can talk to you a bit about 7 

his efforts with us.  Thank you. 8 

  MR. HARTMEIER: 9 

  Thanks, Steve, for that lovely 10 

introduction and thanks for your time today.  As Steve 11 

said, I run the gaming, lodging and leisure group at 12 

Lehman Brothers.  I have 15 years experience, 10 years 13 

running a group like this at two different firms.  14 

I’ve been at Lehman Brothers for seven years.  Lehman 15 

Brothers, if you don’t know, is Premier Global 16 

Investment Bank.  We have a lot of credentials 17 

including raising, as a lead bank, over $50 billion of 18 

gaming and lodging transactions over the last ten 19 

years. 20 

  My experience with Pinnacle and Lehman’s 21 

experience with Pinnacle includes ten successful 22 

capital market transactions, which we’ve led over the 23 

last five years.  $2.5 billion of debt and equity 24 

financings that the company has raised and every one 25 
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of those has been at better terms.  Either a higher 1 

stock price or a lower cost of debt during that 2 

period.  I also have known Dan for over ten years, 3 

including when he was a CFO at Mirage Resorts where we 4 

--- at a different firm, where I raised over a $1 5 

billion in capital for Mirage while he was the CFO.  6 

So lots of knowledge, lots of experience. 7 

  Pinnacle’s reputation on Wall Street is 8 

absolutely terrific.  As you look there in terms of 9 

the stock price, they have a proven track record of 10 

delivering results.  The company has delivered what 11 

they’ve told the Street.  Their projects have been 12 

successful and I think that’s --- you know, one of the 13 

biggest parts here is that you can go out, you can put 14 

a building together, you can put slots in it.  The 15 

critical thing is, does it have long-term value?  Does 16 

it create long-term value?  Is there an entertainment 17 

component to it?  Is it something that’s going to 18 

last?  And that --- as Dan said and others have said, 19 

that’s not an easy thing to do.  It takes a lot of 20 

thought around the planning.  It takes a lot of 21 

thought around the building out of those projects and 22 

a lot of thought around operating it, all of which 23 

they’ve done extremely well with a couple of projects 24 

that they now have opened that have been leaders in 25 
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the marketplace, and as you can see there the stock 1 

price reflects that. 2 

  Over the last five years stocks have gone 3 

from basically $5 to over $30 and direct result of 4 

that is their market capitalization.  This is their 5 

equity market value.  As you can see back in 2002 the 6 

equity market value of the company was around $200, 7 

the equity market today is $1.5 billion.  And that’s a 8 

direct result of their credibility and what they’ve 9 

delivered to the investment community and to all their 10 

partners. 11 

  I’m just going to touch on for just a 12 

second.  You know, the financing here is really driven 13 

by the strength of the project and the credibility of 14 

the management team.  You know, I’ve never seen --- 15 

you know, these are monopoly projects at the start.  16 

It’s not simple, but it’s relatively easy to get 17 

financing.  The real driver here at the end of the day 18 

is, you know, whether you’re going to have a 19 

successful project.  And I can’t state enough that in 20 

my mind the differentiating factor here is, does the 21 

management team have credibility?  Can they actually 22 

develop something that fits with the community, that 23 

makes a nice return, that meets the needs of all the 24 

constituencies that are out there, the bank market, 25 
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the bond market, the equity holders and the community? 1 

And I think that they’ve done an absolutely terrific 2 

job of that with their projects.  And to that end I 3 

can tell you that I think that this project under 4 

Pinnacle’s hands would be very well received by the 5 

investment community. 6 

  MR. LEE: 7 

  You know, Mike referenced it being a 8 

monopoly market and I hope you appreciate, we’ve never 9 

approached it that way.  Well, there would be a limit 10 

of two casinos in Philadelphia.  Of course there’s a 11 

couple of racetracks just across the city line, which 12 

would compete with that.  There are casinos, 13 

racetracks with slot machines in Delaware.  There are 14 

now racetracks with slot machines coming into New York 15 

and of course there’s Atlantic City down the road.  I 16 

think eventually there will be slot machines virtually 17 

everywhere.  And when you build one of these things 18 

you’re looking out 30 years you have to assume that 19 

there will be slot machines virtually everywhere.  So 20 

we build them to last, we build them to be very 21 

competitive, which obviously is the right thing for us 22 

to do as businessmen, but it’s also the right thing 23 

for the city, the City of Philadelphia and the State 24 

of Pennsylvania.  That comes from our development 25 
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expertise and it worked for us elsewhere. 1 

  We also have the operating experience.  2 

I’m just summing again.  You’ve heard all of this, but 3 

reminding you that we have the financing ability and 4 

we actually have a very liquid balance sheet today.  5 

But we have other projects and taken as a whole we 6 

will go and raise additional money.  I, of course, 7 

recognize Mr. Johnson is actually prepared to cut a 8 

check as well if that partnership is approved and that 9 

would be $35 million of equity matched with our $65 10 

million of equity, and that makes it pretty easy to 11 

raise the rest. 12 

  We have a commitment to diversity and 13 

both as a company because it’s the right thing to do, 14 

and in accordance with the requirements of the state, 15 

of the Commonwealth.  And then we have a proven track 16 

record both at developing casinos and at operating 17 

them.  We have the best site.  And I say that with 18 

some prejudice towards that site of course, but we are 19 

also the largest site with the easiest access, where 20 

the least traffic impact --- we have the most 21 

extensive program designed for the site.  We’ve 22 

reached out for some of the world’s experts on urban 23 

design and come up with a very imaginative design.  24 

We’re offering diverse ownership and we think it’s the 25 
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right project for Philadelphia.  Thank you very much 1 

for your time.  And I don’t know --- if we have time 2 

for questions we’re happy to take them. 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 4 

  That’s okay.  We’ll make some time for 5 

questions.  Any questions from the Board?  Ray?  Ms. 6 

Colins? 7 

  MS. COLINS: 8 

  Mr. Lee, you had --- I don’t know if you 9 

had discussed it, but one of your --- one of the 10 

representatives from Pinnacle had talked about the 11 

significant importance now that you place on 12 

developing a player tracking system, the importance of 13 

that in developing a national clientele.  And you also 14 

testified that you are about to consummate the 15 

purchase of the Sands in Atlantic City; is that 16 

correct? 17 

  MR. LEE: 18 

  That's correct.  The Sands site, the 19 

Sands itself closed last weekend. 20 

  MS. COLINS: 21 

  Right. 22 

  MR. LEE: 23 

  And we will demolish it to build 24 

something new on that site. 25 
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  MS. COLINS: 1 

  I suppose you’re going to build a casino 2 

there? 3 

  MR. LEE: 4 

  Yes. 5 

  MS. COLINS: 6 

  Okay.  So my question then is, how can 7 

you assure us in Pennsylvania that if we give you a 8 

license for a slot machine facility in Philadelphia 9 

that you will not be competing against this 10 

Philadelphia market with this Atlantic City property 11 

where the tax rate is lower and where --- and that 12 

this Philadelphia investment will not merely be a 13 

hedge in order for you to more fully develop a 14 

facility where there’s a lower tax rate? 15 

  MR. LEE: 16 

  Okay.  Well, first off, recognize we’re 17 

not creating the competition in Atlantic City and 18 

Atlantic City exists.  It’s already 10 or 11 large 19 

casinos there and they’re not going away, so that 20 

competition will be there.  Second, the players will 21 

tend to go where they want to go and that is going to 22 

be based a little bit on, you know, what their intent 23 

is.  Are they going out on a Tuesday evening to have 24 

dinner and gamble a little bit, and then go home?  Not 25 
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very practical to drive an hour away to Atlantic City 1 

if you’re only going to gamble for a couple of hours. 2 

On the other hand when it’s time for your vacation, 3 

you might want to go to Las Vegas.  You might want to 4 

go to the Four Seasons Great Exuma.  You might even   5 

--- if it’s a weekend, you might go to Atlantic City 6 

or a long weekend in Atlantic City.  You’re not likely 7 

to go to Fishtown for a one-week vacation.  I mean, 8 

just not --- and so the players will tend to dictate 9 

where they choose to go. 10 

  Now, the player tracking system is 11 

something that really Harrah's is the leader in the 12 

industry on that and we started looking at this a year 13 

and a half ago.  When we opened in Lake Charles and we 14 

had clearly a superior facility and I thought there 15 

wouldn’t be anybody at the Harrah's facility because 16 

the Harrah's facility was a dump.  I don’t know how 17 

else to put it, but it was really atrocious and we 18 

started having focus groups with their customers 19 

saying, why are you still going to Harrah's?  They 20 

said, well, we get these points.  We said, yeah, but 21 

then you have to eat there?  They said, yeah, but, you 22 

know, when we take our vacation, we go to Las Vegas 23 

and we get comped in Las Vegas. 24 

  So we started looking at Harrah's and 25 
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what they were doing and how their different 1 

properties work.  And it’s fascinating because where 2 

they have bought casinos, there are several times 3 

where we thought they overpaid for a casino and they 4 

plugged in the total rewards and the revenues went up 5 

15 percent, 17 percent.  And there were other 6 

instances where they sold the casino and the person 7 

they sold the casino to found out that once it was 8 

unplugged from total rewards the revenues fell 10 or 9 

15 percent. 10 

  They bought a casino in Las Vegas called 11 

the Rio operated by a very smart man by the name of 12 

Tony Marnell, made $100 million a year under Tony.  13 

They bought it and it’s making $140 million, $145 14 

million.  And it works both ways because what happens 15 

is because you can accumulate points here that would 16 

be redeemed for your vacation in Las Vegas it gets the 17 

loyalty in the local market because you want to get 18 

those points.  And then when you take your vacation 19 

you go to Las Vegas you stay in a Harrah's facility in 20 

Las Vegas because you have those points to redeem in 21 

Las Vegas.  And it’s a real problem if you are a   22 

non-branded property, if you will.  And so we’ve took 23 

--- frankly that’s very reminiscent of the hotel 24 

business.  Very difficult to have a hotel these days 25 
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that doesn’t have a brand name on it. 1 

  Last night I ended up staying at the 2 

Hershey Hotel, which is a wonderful hotel.  I’ve never 3 

had so much chocolate in my room before in my life.  4 

It’s a half hour from here.  It was my last choice of 5 

where to stay although it’s probably one of the best 6 

hotels in the area, if not the best hotel.  The Crown 7 

Plaza was filled, the Sheraton was filled.  All the 8 

hotels that have brand names on them were filled.  9 

Why?  Because we use their 800 number, we use their 10 

website, maybe we’re in their frequent traveler 11 

program, you accumulate your points at the Marriott, 12 

when you take your vacation in Hawaii, you can redeem 13 

those points, and the hotel business did that 20 years 14 

ago. 15 

  The casino business is just getting into 16 

it now and the impact is if you pick two casinos in 17 

Philadelphia that don’t have that connection --- 18 

Harrah's is going to sit just across the city line in 19 

Chester and they’re going to get people down there 20 

because when they take their vacation and go to Las 21 

Vegas they’re going to want to get comped at a 22 

property there.  So that is something that we are 23 

moving towards and we think it’s an important asset. 24 

  Now, you know, there are days you want to 25 
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go down to Atlantic City and you want to stroll the 1 

boardwalk.  There are other days where you want to go 2 

locally to Fishtown.  You will also have customers in 3 

Atlantic City that say, we want to try something 4 

different and still get our points, so it will work 5 

both ways so ---.  Yes? 6 

  MR. MARSHALL: 7 

  Just to say that I understand why the 8 

customer may choose that, but I guess the hard part I 9 

have is if I’m sitting there as a gaming enterprise 10 

and I can get $.90 on my dollar in New Jersey and $.46 11 

on my dollar in Pennsylvania how do you resist the 12 

urge not to try to drive the business down there?  13 

It’s not accusing, I just ---. 14 

  MR. LEE: 15 

  Yeah.  You know, I think it would be a  16 

--- I understand your concern.  I don’t know how to 17 

completely address it.  It would be a much bigger 18 

concern if you had table game business.  Okay. 19 

  MR. MARSHALL: 20 

  Because? 21 

  MR. LEE: 22 

  Because you can have a table game player 23 

might lose $200,000 a year, $300,000 a year, then you 24 

start saying, well, gee, for that customer we can 25 
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charter a helicopter and fly him down to Atlantic City 1 

and the savings on the tax rate will pay for the 2 

helicopter.  But you can’t pay for a helicopter at a 3 

quarter slot machine.  Okay.  And so you start saying, 4 

what are you going to do?  Now, a person who plays 5 

that quarter slot machine enough he will get a free 6 

dinner in Atlantic City.  He’ll get a free buffet in 7 

Atlantic City and we can’t afford to give a free 8 

buffet here.  We purposely designed it that there is 9 

no buffet in this building.  It’s intentional.  If we 10 

had a buffet in this building, people would expect to 11 

be comped, and at 54 percent tax rate we can’t afford 12 

to comp them.  So we have food court venues where 13 

people don’t expect to get comped.  People don’t 14 

expect a free Big Mac.  It’s a funny thing.  You know, 15 

and you have an assortment of restaurant venues, but 16 

frankly because it’s a city of 7.5 million people 17 

they’ll do fine on their own.  They’ll make money on 18 

their own.  We have movie theaters.  People aren’t 19 

expecting a free ticket to a movie theatre and we have 20 

thought this out.  Now, if somebody has a show, 21 

whether it’s us or somebody else, has a performer in 22 

Atlantic City will they get invited to Atlantic City 23 

if they’re a big enough player?  Yes, they probably 24 

will and that will happen whether we have the casino 25 
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in Atlantic City or not.  That’s just a function of 1 

the reality of the business and the differential in 2 

tax rates. 3 

  Now, by us having the facility in 4 

Atlantic City, we manage that process so we get the 5 

loyalty of the person here, and it works both ways.  6 

At the end of the day the customer chooses where they 7 

want to go.  The little gimmees are really not what 8 

really drive it.  I mean, it might direct you from one 9 

casino to another until you get to the big high 10 

rollers and then it really matters because then you 11 

can afford it.  But at the slot level, you know, are 12 

you really going to get into your car and drive an 13 

hour each way because you get a free buffet, you know? 14 

And the cost of fuel these days and the cost of 15 

somebody’s time. 16 

  MR. MARSHALL: 17 

  If I went three times and that got me a 18 

night in a hotel in Atlantic City, I might go. 19 

  MR. LEE: 20 

  Yeah. 21 

  MR. MARSHALL: 22 

  And, you know, the two-and-a-half years 23 

that I’ve been here, been on this Board, you end up 24 

talking to people and people who --- you know, 25 
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policemen, teachers, nurses gamble and they look to 1 

get comped and they get comped in Atlantic City.  And 2 

they leave Fishtown and drive down there. 3 

  MR. LEE: 4 

  And that will happen.  Okay.  And if the 5 

choice of licensees in Philadelphia do not have a 6 

related property in New Jersey, or frankly 7 

Connecticut, then it’s just going to happen out of 8 

Chester.  And Chester will have a bigger market share 9 

in the region because there’s no question Harrah's 10 

will do that, Trump will do that.  And it’s not an 11 

intent to drive business from one property to the 12 

other.  It’s just the realities of what you can comp. 13 

I mean, when we sit down and figure out whether we’re 14 

going to comp somebody it’s pretty simple math.  You 15 

know, you say, okay, if we’re going to buy you dinner, 16 

you know, the costs of providing that dinner in that 17 

restaurant is going to be $50 a person.  So therefore 18 

we expect you to gamble this much more.  Well, if the 19 

tax rate is as high as it is in Pennsylvania, the 20 

hurdle gets much higher.  It doesn’t mean you never 21 

comp for the right person, you would still comp, but 22 

the criteria for comping would be much higher in 23 

Pennsylvania than it will be in New Jersey.  And 24 

that’s going to be a fact of life no matter who 25 
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operates these casinos. 1 

  MR. MARSHALL: 2 

  Thank you. 3 

  MR. ANGELI: 4 

  I have two questions, Chairman.  Thank 5 

you.  If you had to compare this site to one other one 6 

that you’re operating do you have something you 7 

compare it to? 8 

  MR. LEE: 9 

  Probably the most comparable is in St. 10 

Louis where we have acquired 20 acres.  When we were 11 

awarded the license, we only owned eight and we 12 

designed the casino hotel to go on the eight.  It 13 

doesn’t take very long as a businessman to realize, 14 

gee, if we’re building a $400 million investment and 15 

there’s this raw land next door to us, it’s kind of 16 

funny how people think --- they doubt whether it’s 17 

really going to happen.  And so in that time frame we 18 

bought additional land in St. Louis.  We knew we were 19 

going ahead.  By the way it was in the paper we were 20 

going ahead, but there’s so many developers who say 21 

they’re going to do wonderful things and don’t come 22 

through on it, that until you actually see the steel 23 

coming out of the ground they hold back.  So we went 24 

ahead and bought an additional --- let’s see.  We 25 
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bought Embassy Suites Hotel and then we bought several 1 

pieces of land, so we have a total of about 20 acres 2 

of land now.  We just recently got a master plan out 3 

of the Jerde Group as well as for a retail complex and 4 

condominiums and additional hotels that can go on that 5 

other 20 acres.  So, in fact, we are actually 6 

developing further phases that weren’t part of our 7 

original submission in St. Louis.  So when you’re --- 8 

now, there we had the constraint of having only eight 9 

acres at the time we made the submission, so we have a 10 

convoluted parking garage there.  I mean, it’s a 1,600 11 

car garage and I think it’s eight or nine stories 12 

tall.  I’d much rather have the type of garage that 13 

we’re planning here with the luxury of 33 acres.  In 14 

Lake Charles we had 200 acres, but we needed most of 15 

that for the golf course. 16 

  MR. ANGELI: 17 

  Thank you.  You said that in your 18 

temporary it’s going to take you 9 to 12 months to do 19 

that.  Is that including design? 20 

  MR. LEE: 21 

  Yes.  Yeah, actually the schematics have 22 

already been drawn up. 23 

  MR. ANGELI: 24 

  The second --- actually the first    25 
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phase ---.  I don’t know --- after the temporary 1 

casino will that start during that same time period in 2 

design --- 3 

  MR. LEE: 4 

  Yes. 5 

  MR. ANGELI: 6 

  --- or are you waiting to ---? 7 

  MR. LEE: 8 

  What happens is the actual working 9 

drawings for building a building is a big number.  10 

It’s $5 million or $6 million.  You know, it’s a funny 11 

thing about architects.  The real added value isn’t 12 

coming up with the design, but where they really make 13 

their money is when you say, okay, give us the working 14 

drawings and they’ll need a room of 100 guys sitting 15 

at computer terminals doing the actual plans of how to 16 

do the molding in every single room.  And you don’t 17 

pull the trigger on that until you know for sure you 18 

have a project.  Okay.  Now, that design process takes 19 

about six months to do the working drawings.  Then it 20 

usually takes another several months to get the 21 

different approvals, to get the building department to 22 

give you the building plan.  And then it takes 18 23 

months to two years to build, which is how you end up 24 

opening in 2009.  The temporary casino, the building 25 
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exists.  It’s a matter of decorating it, so right now 1 

it looks like the abandoned warehouse that it is, but 2 

structurally the building is in good shape.  So it’s a 3 

matter of going in and decorating it and literally 4 

rolling out the carpet, and putting up the wallpaper, 5 

bringing in the slot machines and turning on the 6 

lights, so that can be done very quickly.  We don’t 7 

have to design and build an actual building. 8 

  MR. ANGELI: 9 

  Thank you. 10 

  MR. MCCABE: 11 

  Mr. Chairman, I have two questions.  12 

First, just point of interest for me is, how were you 13 

awarded the St. Louis license?  Was it a competitive 14 

process? 15 

  MR. LEE: 16 

  It was a competitive process.  We 17 

competed in the city with Harrah's and Isle of Capri 18 

and we competed in the county with Isle of Capri. 19 

  UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER: 20 

  It should be the opposite. 21 

  MR. LEE: 22 

  I have it the opposite.  Yeah, that’s 23 

right.  Harrah's had a proposal in the county, Isle of 24 

Capri had proposals in both places. 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

133   133 

  MR. MCCABE: 1 

  So were you ---? 2 

  MR. LEE: 3 

  It’s two different licenses. 4 

  MR. MCCABE: 5 

  And you were awarded both of them? 6 

  MR. LEE: 7 

  And we were awarded both of them. 8 

  MR. MCCABE: 9 

  In a competitive process against ---? 10 

  MR. LEE: 11 

  Harrah's and Isle of Capri.  Correct. 12 

  MR. MCCABE: 13 

  Thank you.  The other question I have is 14 

you’re going to be building possibly, if you’re 15 

awarded a license here, two locations simultaneously. 16 

One over in Atlantic City, one here in Philadelphia if 17 

you’re awarded a license.  How is that going to affect 18 

you financially and then your emphasis and attention 19 

on the Philadelphia project? 20 

  MR. LEE: 21 

  Well, we’re a pretty good size company.  22 

We actually have projects.  We have another project in 23 

Louisiana.  We’ll be completing St. Louis --- the St. 24 

Louis one.  Those will overlap and Atlantic City will 25 
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actually be later and we just agreed to buy the land. 1 

I think we close the deal tomorrow.  We will own the 2 

land.  It has seven buildings on it that have to be 3 

demolished.  We haven’t hired an architect.  We 4 

haven’t even started the plans.  We have publicly said 5 

we don’t expect to open until 2011 or 2012, so we 6 

would be open in Philadelphia a couple of years ahead 7 

of that.  We have, if you recall the map that Wade was 8 

referencing, quite a few projects, but the fact is 9 

they’re all staggered.  They’re at different 10 

timelines.  One of the things we found is where there 11 

is a limited number of licenses such as Pennsylvania 12 

and Louisiana and Missouri when you are selected they 13 

give you pretty strict timeline.  And you want to get 14 

it open because it’s a big source of tax revenue and 15 

jobs and you’ve awarded the one license and so you 16 

want this to have the priority.  And that gets 17 

embedded into the project agreement. 18 

  There are other places like in Colorado, 19 

Atlantic City, Las Vegas, where you don’t have that 20 

time pressure.  Mississippi, there’s an unlimited 21 

number of licenses.  So frankly if selected by dictate 22 

because the way the process works Philadelphia becomes 23 

a priority because it will be in the development 24 

agreement that we have to reach certain deadlines to 25 
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get open and something like Atlantic City slides back 1 

because you don’t have a contractual agreement to be 2 

open by any specific date. And so as a practical 3 

matter we’re well ahead of the process here.  We at 4 

least have the design where in Atlantic City we 5 

haven’t completed buying the land, so it’s different. 6 

  MR. MCCABE: 7 

  Thank you. 8 

  MR. MARSHALL: 9 

  Just two things for the record.  You have 10 

the riparian rights? 11 

  MR. LEE: 12 

  We have the riparian rights for part of 13 

the project and that’s this area over in here.  This 14 

lot the riparian rights were purchased by the 15 

landowner and we would inherit them from that.  Over 16 

here some of the riparian rights we do not have and if 17 

we did not get them we would have to pull this back 18 

over.  Might have to take some of the parking and put 19 

it over here.  Without --- if we get no additional 20 

riparian rights, we have 22 acres, which is enough. 21 

  MR. MARSHALL: 22 

  And your project will work on a timely 23 

basis? 24 

  MR. LEE: 25 
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  It will work in a timely basis without 1 

it.  Obviously we would rather get the riparian rights 2 

in which case we have 33 acres. 3 

  MR. MARSHALL: 4 

  But, you know ---. 5 

  MR. LEE: 6 

  We can make it work without the riparian 7 

rights. 8 

  MR. MARSHALL: 9 

  And the other thing I guess for Denyse 10 

and that’s just, you’ve had a chance to look at their 11 

financial operation.  Do you have any concern about 12 

their financial viability of getting from award of the 13 

license to the stabilized year? 14 

  MS. MISKIN: 15 

  There’s no concern. 16 

  MR. RIVERS: 17 

  Mr. Chairman? 18 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 19 

  Please. 20 

  MR. RIVERS: 21 

  You made reference earlier in your 22 

presentation about the labor agreements that you had 23 

between the minorities and the local unions.  I think 24 

you were making reference to St. Louis? 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

137   137 

  MR. LEE: 1 

  Yes. 2 

  MR. RIVERS: 3 

  Have you started to negotiate anything 4 

like that here in Philadelphia? 5 

  MR. LEE: 6 

  We’ve met with some people, but we have 7 

not started negotiating that yet, but we would 8 

envision that we would have to do that.  That’s --- I 9 

was referencing ---.  It’s complicated and because 10 

we’ve been through this we know how to do it.  You 11 

know, you’re trying to find a way and I think in 12 

Missouri we have approximately 30 percent of the 13 

project costs is being invested with minority 14 

subcontractors, minority firms.  And of course the --- 15 

it’s a very strong union town and they want it to be 16 

an all union job, so we have found a way to do that.  17 

And it’s not always easy because frankly a lot of the 18 

minority subcontractors are non-union and so you have 19 

to sit with the unions and say, listen, we need to 20 

satisfy the minority community and you sit with the 21 

minority community and say, listen, this is a union 22 

job and we need to make this work.  And we would 23 

envision doing the same here. 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

 

138   138 

  I have a couple of questions.  If you 1 

could, I just want to make sure I understand the phase 2 

--- the difference between Phase I and Phase II.  3 

You’re committed to Phase I; correct? 4 

  MR. LEE: 5 

  That's correct. 6 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 7 

  Two is a maybe? 8 

  MR. LEE: 9 

  Two is where you go from 3,000 slot 10 

machines to 5,000 slot machines. 11 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 12 

  Okay.  And that’s --- we’ll have to see 13 

how the market develops for that; correct? 14 

  MR. LEE: 15 

  Correct. 16 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 17 

  Okay.  But in II --- I’m sorry.  In Phase 18 

I does that include the movie theatre? 19 

  MR. LEE: 20 

  Yes, it does. 21 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 22 

  Okay.  And there’s a commitment to that; 23 

correct? 24 

  MR. LEE: 25 
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  Yes.  Phase I includes everything that I 1 

would consider the core of the project.  Phase II just 2 

adds more slot machines and more parking. 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 4 

  So the Phase I includes the 5 

attractiveness of the facility, in other words, what 6 

you think is going to attract people to the place? 7 

  MR. LEE: 8 

  Yes. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  I just want to make sure we understand 11 

that. 12 

  MR. LEE: 13 

  Yeah.  Just to make it very, very clear  14 

--- the lights aren’t working. 15 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 16 

  Well, listen we’ve seen it.  I think we 17 

know what you’re talking about.  That’s not the issue. 18 

  MR. LEE: 19 

  Well, ---. 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  That’s all right.  Just point.  Oh, there 22 

you go.  Okay.  Just give me phase I.  Okay? 23 

  MR. LEE: 24 

  Okay.  So from the edge of the movie 25 
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theatres this retail concourse, kind of the mixing 1 

bowl, this is a big lobby area that can also be used 2 

for a New Year’s Eve party.  This part of the casino  3 

--- notice this part is not lit, that’s Phase II. 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 5 

  Okay. 6 

  MR. LEE: 7 

  This part of the parking garage, this 8 

part would be added later.  And we very carefully --- 9 

because the temporary would be here.  Let me just go 10 

through this again because it’s a very important 11 

point.  The temporary building is here, so when you 12 

open that this would all be surface lots while you’re 13 

doing the working drawings for this.  The first part 14 

of the Phase I would be really this parking garage 15 

here, because you need the parking for the temporary 16 

casino and for the construction workers, so you build 17 

this part of the parking garage.  When that opens you 18 

no longer need all this surface lot.  You have people 19 

park here to use the temporary casino.  Now, you build 20 

this, which would be the movie theatres, the retail 21 

concourse, the restaurants along the waterfront, the 22 

pond itself, the entertainment grand stand there and 23 

the restaurant, and the garage from here back and a 24 

little boat marina.  That’s all Phase I. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  All right.  Fine. 2 

  MR. LEE: 3 

  Phase II --- 4 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 5 

  Uh-huh (yes). 6 

  MR. LEE: 7 

  --- and let me turn off the temporary 8 

casino, is this expansion of the casino.  So now 9 

you’re coming out into the surface lot.  Well, again, 10 

the first thing you would do is this expansion of a 11 

parking garage, which would mean you wouldn’t need 12 

this piece of the surface lot and now you expand the 13 

casino out to here. 14 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 15 

  The question of traffic came up before 16 

and it’s been a big issue as you can imagine after the 17 

public input hearings, and some we’ve taken very 18 

seriously.  And that’s why we hired our own traffic 19 

consultant to sort of review the plans.  And I think 20 

he noted a couple of things where he suggested that 21 

you might want to take a look and --- or actually do a 22 

study and maybe make some commitments.  And I think 23 

the response was that you’d take a look.  I just was 24 

curious what taking a look means. 25 
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  MR. LEE: 1 

  Harry has already been looking at that.  2 

He indicated that he’s already looking at that. 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 4 

  Right. 5 

  MR. LEE: 6 

  And my real response is obviously we want 7 

people to be able to get to the property. 8 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 9 

  Right. 10 

  MR. LEE: 11 

  I think in that period of 2009 and 2012  12 

--- I mean, it’s easier to look at kind of the pre and 13 

post.  In reality during that period they’re building 14 

a major interchange.  There are going to be all sorts 15 

of construction disruptions in the area, you know, 16 

moving streets and detouring traffic and so on.  You 17 

need to coordinate with PennDOT on exactly what 18 

they’re doing to make sure that people can still get 19 

around.  Am I saying that right?  You’re the expert. 20 

  MR. LASPEE: 21 

  Exactly.  With regard to the Girard 22 

Avenue interchange construction, we’ll need to closely 23 

coordinate that with PennDOT.  The maintenance 24 

protection of traffic during the actual interchange 25 
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construction is really the purview of PennDOT and they 1 

will need to maintain traffic, you know, during 2 

construction at Girard Avenue interchange, you know, 3 

even if the Pinnacle site is not located at this 4 

location.  And they have definite plans that they’re 5 

looking at.  They don’t have ---. 6 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 7 

  We’re familiar with the plans.  8 

  MR. LASPEE: 9 

  Yes.  They have not worked all the 10 

details out yet because they’re still in final design. 11 

One of the things that they are looking for, and I 12 

don’t want to speak on behalf of PennDOT, but they’re 13 

looking at the possible extension of Delaware Avenue 14 

and realignment of Richmond Street to the east of the 15 

existing Richmond Street location, which will actually 16 

facilitate access to our site even further. 17 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 18 

  What portion of these changes were you 19 

all planning to pay for?  Just so we have apples and 20 

apples we can ---. 21 

  MR. LEE: 22 

  I mean, obviously we’re not going to pay 23 

for the whole interchange. 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 
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  I understand.  I wouldn’t think that. 1 

  MR. LEE: 2 

  But I think ---. 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 4 

  I’m talking about the non-Girard Avenue 5 

stuff, the Girard exit stuff. 6 

  MR. LEE: 7 

  I mean, it’s --- we would expect in 8 

Philadelphia as we do in other cities to pay to 9 

mitigate the traffic issues that we create. 10 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 11 

  Okay.  Fine.  Thank you.  The last thing 12 

was we --- I know you’ve made some significant 13 

commitments over the years to community groups,      14 

et cetera.  Was there something specific in 15 

Philadelphia or was there just a --- was it sort of a 16 

general commitment or was this something you were 17 

going to make as a condition to the license?  I was a 18 

little --- I might have been reading something or 19 

talking to somebody when you guys talked about it, but 20 

I didn’t catch that. 21 

  MR. LEE: 22 

  I mean, we’ve talked with a lot of 23 

community groups and, you know, obviously part of what 24 

you look to is once you’re open and profitable it’s a 25 
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lot easier to put a number on it. 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  Okay. 3 

  MR. LEE: 4 

  And we haven’t put a number on it. 5 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 6 

  That’s fine.  Okay.  Because I just 7 

wanted to make sure I didn’t miss something.  And the 8 

last thing I had, we should have asked every applicant 9 

this.  It appears that Philadelphia is a non-smoking 10 

city. 11 

  MR. LEE: 12 

  Uh-huh (yes). 13 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 14 

  And what impact do you think that’s going 15 

to have on you or any of the participants? 16 

  MR. LEE: 17 

  It will have an impact.  I mean, I’m not 18 

a smoker and I actually don’t like cigarette smoke, 19 

but the fact is a lot of our customers do smoke.  And 20 

I think eventually all casinos will be non-smoking and 21 

I honestly think that’s not very far off.  There’s 22 

discussion about it in New Jersey already and so on.  23 

At the moment the way the body of law sits is the 24 

Philadelphia casinos will be non-smoking and the 25 
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casinos just across the city line would be smoking. 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  We’re aware of that.  3 

  MR. LEE: 4 

  And that’s a competitive disadvantage and 5 

that’s a pretty serious competitive disadvantage.  6 

Now, Delaware when they put in --- when they had to go 7 

non-smoking their revenues fell 20 percent very 8 

quickly.  They’ve since recovered.  Okay.  But they 9 

were growing before that, they recovered and they’re 10 

now back to where they were, but not back to where 11 

they might have been had they continued to grow.  12 

Frankly I would rather see a federal law that just 13 

said no smoking because then we’d all be on an even 14 

keel.  We actually had --- we used to operate two card 15 

clubs in California.  We sold them in the past year 16 

and California passed a law that you couldn’t smoke in 17 

the card clubs.  It didn’t apply to the tribal casinos 18 

of which there’s about 70 of them in California 19 

because they’re considered sovereign nations.  And it 20 

really devastated the card business for quite a while 21 

until the card clubs got smart and moved the table 22 

games out into the parking lot.  And so you actually 23 

sit in the parking lot and play poker, which works in 24 

Southern California.  I don’t think that it’d work in 25 
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Philadelphia. 1 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 2 

  Not in Philadelphia in the winter or 3 

maybe in the spring either for that matter.  Is there 4 

any other questions for our applicant?  All right.  5 

I’ll turn it back to Anne. 6 

  MS. NEEB: 7 

  Okay.  At this time I’d like to turn it 8 

over to the Bureau of Directors so they can give their 9 

findings to the Board.  Do you want to go first? 10 

  MR. SCHWOYER: 11 

  Mr. Chairman, members of the Board, 12 

having reviewed the Bureau of Investigations and 13 

enforcement background suitability report, I’m not 14 

aware of any issue at this time which would preclude 15 

the issuance of a license to this applicant. 16 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 17 

  Thank you. 18 

  MS. MISKIN: 19 

  At this time based on the information 20 

contained in the application and the financial 21 

suitability analysis performed, the financial 22 

suitability task force did not find anything 23 

financially material that would preclude PNK PA from 24 

obtaining a Category 2 license. 25 
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  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 1 

  Thank you. 2 

  MS. HENSEL: 3 

  At this time based on the materials and 4 

information in the application and the cooperation 5 

received from the applicant, the Bureau of Licensing 6 

is not aware of any issues that would preclude 7 

licensure of PNK PA, LLC as a Category 2 slots 8 

operator. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  Thank you, Susan.  Anything else from the 11 

applicant today? 12 

  ATTORNEY GIORGIONE: 13 

  Mr. Chairman, we’d like to move into 14 

evidence some additional information.  We consulted 15 

with staff on this.  First, the PowerPoint, obviously, 16 

that we had today.  We have that marked as Exhibit 14. 17 

Second we have pictures of the model that we’d like to 18 

move into evidence.  That would be Exhibit 15.  We 19 

have a distribution book that we discussed with staff 20 

and had to redact a few documents out of the book, but 21 

they’ve agreed to the book as redacted and that would 22 

be Exhibit 16.  We have several letters that were 23 

referenced during testimony.  A letter dated November 24 

14th from JEVS Human Services referred to by Barbara 25 
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Grant that will be Exhibit 19.  I apologize.  I’m 1 

going backwards.  Exhibit 18 would be an October 19th 2 

letter from OIC that was referenced during the 3 

testimony.  And then finally we have a compendium of 4 

news reports from the St. Louis area with regard to 5 

diversity efforts by Pinnacle in that marketplace that 6 

were referred to by Mr. Moppins, and that would be 7 

Exhibit 17.  And we ask that all of those be moved 8 

into evidence. 9 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 10 

  Any objection from staff? 11 

  ATTORNEY DONAGHUE: 12 

  No objection, but just for purposes of 13 

the record, you’re also going to want to move in 14 

Exhibits 11, 12 and 13, which are the 44119 J 15 

memoranda.  Exhibit 12 is the reply to Riverwalk 16 

notice of intent to compare and Exhibit 13 is reply to 17 

Keystone notice of intent to compare. 18 

  ATTORNEY GIORGIONE: 19 

  Correct. 20 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 21 

  Okay. 22 

  UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER: 23 

  Motion for exhibits. 24 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 25 
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  I have a motion for those exhibits. 1 

  UNIDENTIFIED MEMBER: 2 

  Second. 3 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 4 

  I have a second.  All who’s in favor. 5 

ALL SAY AYE 6 

  CHAIRMAN DECKER: 7 

  Any opposed.  Motion carries.  Anything 8 

else from staff?  Anything else from applicant?  We’re 9 

adjourned.  Excuse me.  The record’s closed and we are 10 

adjourned.  Thank you very much. 11 

* * * * * 12 

CONCLUDED AT 12:32 P.M. 13 

* * * * * 14 
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